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Letter of transmittal

30 March 2008

In accordance with Financial Regulation 11.1, | eéhdlkie honour to submit the
financial statements of the International Crimi@alurt for the financial period 1 January to

31 December 2007.

Mr. T J Burr

Comptroller and Auditor General
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
Victoria

London SW1W 9SP

United Kingdom

(Signed) Silvana Arbia

Registrar
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Executive Summary

« An unqualified audit opinion on the 2007 finantdtements.
« Review of financial results and other financial teed.

e Significant audit adjustment as a result of somen@Bon of purchase orders placed
at the end of the year being accounted for in treng/ year of account.

» Successful and accurate recovery of accounting Idateas result of a SAP system
failure and the failure of back up data.

* Suggested changes to procedures for budget transf@60 budget transfers have
been made in 2007 totalling some €9.2 million.

* Guidance on the adoption of International Publict&eAccounting Standards and
specific issues arising in respect of accrued leave

e Suggestions to further improve the accountabilityargements for the project
director responsible for the permanent premisejgegt.o

« Follow up of Corporate Governance issues relatmghe Statement of Internal
Control, Risk Management and the Audit Committee.

* Follow up on prior year audit recommendations.
Overall results of the audit

1. We have audited the financial statements of therm@itional Criminal Court in accordance
with Article 13 of the Financial Regulations and aanformity with International Standards on
Auditing issued by the International Auditing andsfirance Standards Board.

2. The audit examination revealed no weaknesses anrsaeshich we considered to be material

to the accuracy, completeness and validity of tinaricial statements; and the audit opinion
confirms that these financial statements preserty fan all material respects, the financial pasit

as at 31 December 2007 and the results of opesatind cash flows for the period then ended, in
accordance with United Nations System Accountingn&ards and the International Criminal

Court’s stated accounting policies.

3. The main observations and recommendations fronmaodit are summarised below, with a
more detailed commentary in the section on Detdilizdllings. Action taken by management in
response to our previous year's recommendation2G06, is set out gknnex A; and the scope
and approach of the audit, which were communictidte Registrar in a detailed audit strategy, is
summarised aAnnex B.

Financial management issues
On financial results

4, In 2007 total income increased by 12 percent 00620 €92.2 million while expenditure
was €77.5 million, a 17 per cent increase. Theem®ed income is accounted for by the rise in
assessed contributions of some €8.4 million whileeaditure has increased mainly as a result of
the continued increase in recruitment of temporamg permanent staff. The Court also made a
further provision of €3.4 million for the judgesempsion scheme. We are pleased to note that
contributions collections have increased to somd @8rcent and that the value of contributions
outstanding at the year end has declined to somen@lion. In overall terms the Court utilised 87
percent of its approved budget and this continaesftect the fact that the Court has yet to htdd i
first trial.
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On end of year procurement

5. In our previous reports we have noted the peakracygement towards the year end. In
2006 we reported on the positive progress madeveldp procurement plans and that the rise in
year end procurement activity was for legitimatesans. Nevertheless, procurement in future years
was expected to be more evenly spread througheuyeahr. However, this year there has been a
significant rise in unliquidated obligations at thear end. On further investigation we found that
some €3 million of purchase orders were raisedaéndmber 2007 and in some cases there was no
obligating agreement at the year end and all gandisservices were due to be delivered in 2008.
As these resultant ULOs do not meet the criteriadesvn in the Court’s financial rules and
regulations for expenditure recognition at the yead, we requested an accounting adjustment of
€3 million and as a result the Court have cancdéllede ULOs, reducing expenditure by €3 million.
We have recommended that in future years sufficteaneé should be allowed for the Court’s
procurement review committee (PRC) to properly eéranand approve procurement requests so
that proper controls over procurement can be esedciWe have further recommended that the
Court should follow the criteria set down their dirtial rules and regulations for expenditure
recognition.

On the SAP system failure

6. During the period 19 July to 16 AuguX207 the Court’s financial system SAP experienced
a system failure. While such failures are not ualjsthe Court also experienced a failure of its
back up data, which could not be used to reconstthe original data. The Court has engaged the
UN International Computer Centre to investigate shstem and back up failure and UNICC have
reported separately on this. The results of thaeve while not identifying conclusively the reason
for the failure, has provided a number of practiommendations to improve data back up
procedures.

7. The key risk posed by the system failure was thatefinancial data for that period may
have been lost and consequently there was thefistaterial error or fraud remaining undetected
during this period. We are pleased to report that@ourt have been able to reconstruct the data
from source paper documentation for each trangaetial that the Court’'s Office of Internal Audit
(OIA) have undertaken a detailed review of the mstmcted data to confirm the completeness,
accuracy and compliance of these transactions tv#hCourt’s rules and regulations. We liaised
closely with IOA to ensure that an adequate levetansaction testing was undertaken and having
reviewed the work of IOA we are satisfied that éhare no material errors in the accounting data or
the financial statements produced thereof. We lagemmended that the Court implement the
recommendations made by UNICC as a matter of uggeacbring their business continuity
arrangements to an acceptable level. We have furdmmmmended that the IT strategy should
reflect the arrangements set down in the IT disast®very plan that is to be developed.

On budgetary controls

8. We see budgetary control as a key internal corgsobhccurate budgeting which closely
matches actual income and expenditure enables takg¢caudit assurance on the completeness and
accuracy of the Court’s financial transactions2007 there had been some 350 budget transfers
amounting to some €9.2 million or 10.3 percenthe total budget. This is a significant level of
transfers and the report details examples of sdntleedarger transfers made during the year. The
Court has explained that the volume and valueanfstiers is in part the result of the unpredictable
nature of its business and also that the AssenfbBtades Parties (ASP) wants the Court to use its
budget headroom to maintain flexibility within thtict rules for such transfers.

9. While recognising the evolving nature of the orgation, we believe that such transfers
should be minimised to improve the reliability of year financial management information. We
have made recommendations for the Court to moreratty predict future funding needs. We
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further recommend that the Court minimise the nundfdransfers and that it should ensure that
the in line with the guidelines provided by the Coittee on Budget and Finance, the rules
allowing transfers are more clearly defined antecéthe need for effective financial management.

Other management issues
On the adoption of International Public Sector Accainting Standards (IPSAS)

10. We note that the Court is developing a project ptarthe implementation of IPSAS. We
recommend that the Court should formally take theigion to adopt IPSAS and develop a strategy
for the adoption of these accounting standards.fAivéaer recommend that a project team are
established for IPSAS implementation and that thegyort on a regular basis to the Registrar,
Committee on Budget and Finance and ASP.

On accrued annual leave

11. The Court routinely reports the value of accruedvée in the notes to its financial
statements and the estimated value of such leagair@mto some €2.6 million. The Court has
recently changed the way this information is ca#tdcand at present the information is incomplete.
The Court’s Office of Internal Audit has undertakemeview of this new system. We recommend
that the Court ensure that it reviews the forthe@m®DIA report on annual leave and ensure that
recommended improvements are implemented to eisarennual leave balances for all staff are
accurately recorded, complete and available aty#s end. These figures should be collated,
reviewed and available for audit ensuring that frasre is fully supported when it becomes a
balance sheet liability on the adoption of IPSAScamting standards.

On permanent premises

12. We have examined the new governance structure agrioy the ASP and we note that

while the Project Director will oversee the permangremises project, the Registrar will have the
delegated authority to establish the project officel authorise expenditure in respect of this
project. We have identified a risk whereby the Regr may have little day to day control over the
permanent premises project, but will be ultimategponsible for the outcome. This may suggest
that the accountability arrangements in place far project director are deficient. We have

recommended that the Court reviews the arrangemtentsnsure that the project director is

accountable for the delivery and success of thpgto

Corporate Governance
On the Statement of Internal Control

13. We note that the Court has declined to produceate®ent of Internal Control (SIC) for
2007 as the Registrar in post during 2007 has rampteted his tenure and left the Court. The new
Registrar does not feel that it would be appropriat sign a statement covering a period during
which she was not in post. While we recognise #tmmale for this decision, we recommend that
the Court should establish a system where headwisfon provide an annual assurance statement
to the Registrar confirming the effectiveness détinal controls in their sphere of responsibility.
Such a system would ensure that the SIC is supgpbsteappropriate evidence on the effectiveness
of internal controls and that any change in persbwould not have an impact on the validity of the
statement.
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Follow up of previous audit recommendations
On risk management

14. The Court appointed consultants in 2007 to undertakisk management review to identify
and evaluate risks. We note that the risk assedgmneject charter has been developed which sets
down the resources required to undertake risk iiieation and the overall time frame for the
completion of this work which is expected to be pteted in November 2008. Once the risk
identification exercise is complete, we encourdgeGourt to collate a manageable number of key
business risks into a usable risk register.

On the Internal Oversight Committee

15. In each of our reports since the start of our appaént we have encouraged the Court to
establish an audit committee with a majority ofdpdndent members. For some time the Court has
operated an Internal Oversight Committee but withthe structure of a conventional audit
committee. Progress to modify the 10C in to an acoinmittee has been limited, although we note
that in 2008 the IOC is to be reconstituted asahdit committee with at least two independent
members. We will report further if such a commitigestablished in our 2008 report.

On other recommendations

16. We report on the progress made with previous aedibmmendations in Annex A where
the Registry have provided details of the progmase against each of our recommendations and
we provide our comments on this progress. In oveahs we welcome the progress that the Court
are making, but note that in some areas describakgprogress has been slow and limited.
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Detailed Findings
Financial Management Issues
Financial Results

Income and expenditure

17. The Financial Statements report that for 2007 totdme increased from €82.2 million to
€92.2 million, an increase of some 12 percent.ghificant portion of this increase is accounted for
by a rise in assessed contributions from €80.4ianilto €88.9 million and an increase in interest
income from €1.7 million to €3.1 million. The ldvef assessed contributions is set by the
Assembly of States Parties (ASP) based on the bediggpenditure for the Court.

18. The Court incurred total expenditure of €77.5 millin 2007 compared to €64.7 million in
2006. The majority of this increase in disbursepesxiture is explained by an increase in staff
costs from €43.5 million in 2006 to €54.4 million 2007 as the Court continues to recruit
temporary and permanent staff to carry out itsrfatige of functions. €3.4 million of Staff Costs in
2007 relate to an increase in the provision forjtitges’ pension scheme to the period ending 31
December 2007, net of this the actual increastafifi ®sts in 2007 was only €7.5 million.

19. Travel and hospitality costs in 2007 rose by €0ifion to €3.7 million (2006: €2.8
million) in line with increased Court activities enseas. Contractual Service costs dropped by €1.9
million, this is mainly due to the reduced numbg&un-disbursed obligations open at the year end
in 2007 (€2.3 million) when compared to 2006 (&#hiBlion). Operating expenses increased by €3.0
million as the court continues to expand its openst and Acquisition Costs remained
approximately the same in 2007 at €4.5 million @06®4.4 million).

20. As part of our audit we examined all significantdme and expenditure balances; and
ensured that there was sufficient reliable evidetwesupport the receipts and disbursements
recorded in the Court's financial statements, anelxplain movements in income and expenditure
between 2006 and 2007.

Collection of contributions

21. The Court collected 93.4 percent of 2007 assessattiloutions in compared with 91.3
percent in 2006. This is a continued improvemerh@collection rate for assessed contributions as
seen in previous years and demonstrates the ongaitigns taken by the Court to improve its
performance in this regard. Total contributiorears fell from €12 million in 2006 (15 percent of
2006 levy) to €8.1 million outstanding in 2007 @@ent of 2007 contribution levy). We continue
to commend the improving collection rates for oldgrears and for assessed contributions in
respect of 2007.

Cases of fraud or presumptive fraud

22. Under the terms of reference governing the exteealit, contained in the financial
regulations, we are required to bring to the notitéhe Assembly of States Parties any cases of
fraud or presumptive fraud. Primary responsibifity the prevention and detection of fraud rests
with management. The Court informed us that they et recorded or investigated any cases of
fraud or presumptive fraud during 2007. The aciimigector of the Office of Internal Audit (OIA)
also confirmed that no cases of fraud or presuradti@ud came to his attention during 2007. Our
audit did not identify any cases of fraud or preptive fraud during the year.
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Losses, write-offs and ex-gratia payments

23. The Property Survey Board wrote off €53,568 of eapendable property in 2007 and
there was an amount of €5,549 written off as a tdssash. No ex-gratia payments were made by
the Court in 2007.

End of Year Procurement

24. In our 2005 and 2006 audit reports we noted thatethcontinues to be a peak in
procurement activity towards the end of the finahgear. In 2006 we obtained evidence to confirm
that the peak in activity was as a result of ttealléme taken to finalise contracts which had been
started much earlier in the year, and that in 20@devel of year end (December) procurement had
declined from over €8 million in 2005 to €5.4 noli. However during our audit of the 2007
financial statements we noted another significaotdase in unliquidated obligations reported in the
financial statements — rising from €11.9 million 2006 to €13.9 million in this year. We
investigated this rise in ULO’s and found that:

. Some €3 million of ULO’s had resulted from purchaséers raised in the last month
of the financial year,;

. We also noted that in all cases these purchasesdndd not been placed with vendors
or that an obligating agreement had not been rekich2007; and

. In all cases the goods and services to which tbk€a's related were to be delivered
or services started in 2008

25. The Procurement Review Committee (PRC) providesyackontrol within the procurement
process to review and approve purchases made b@dhd. A peak of procurement close to the
end of the financial period may potentially redube time available for reviewing procurement
requests effectively.

26. We also noted from our review that although the RR@sidered the appropriateness and
authorisation of the purchases under review, ay#a® end there was no consideration of whether
the requests were being charged against appramsatelating to the correct accounting period, or
if they would constitute a valid obligation befdhe year ended.

27. We concluded that for €3 million of expendituregrted in 2007, the ULOs did not meet
the criteria set down in the Courts financial rubesl regulations, which requires an obligation to
have been established by placing a purchase oiitteawendor and that the goods or services had
not been delivered or started in 2007. Based andbmclusion we requested an audit adjustment to
the financial statements to cancel these obligationrespect of 2007. The year end balance of
ULO’s declined from €13.9 million to €10.9 milliaas result of this adjustment.

Recommendation 1:

We recommend that the Court ensure that all peyoant requests relating to current year
appropriations are submitted in good time for apakdy the Procurement Review Committee
(PRC). We further recommend that in accordance thighCourt's financial rules and regulations
purchase orders must be placed with a vendor llegal obligation to be created and that the goods
and services must be due for delivery or starteferfinancial year.

Recommendation 2:
We recommend that year end procurement requeasgoéals and services due for delivery

or use in the following accounting period should tlearged against the following year’s
appropriation for that activity.
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Recommendation 3:

We recommend that the Court introduce a year ebh® tkview exercise. This review
process should identify year end purchase requéstseither do not constitute a valid legal
obligation of the Court or obligations that do melate to the current year. Obligating documents
not meeting this requirement should be excludeghfitee year end ULO balance.

28. The Court is already in the early stages of pragaitself for the adoption of International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). Theoduction of these standards will remove the
ability of the Court to obligate funds at the yead in the way that funds were obligated this year.
All expenditures will need to be matched to theoaecting period in which they are received or
consumed using a full accruals approach. Inangatsie Court's awareness and understanding of
the importance of year end cut-off for ULO’s wilbtnonly help prepare it for this transition; it il
improve the quality of the information on outturgainst budget in reports submitted to the ASP as
the expenditure against appropriations will be whalevant to that year’s appropriation.

SAP System Failure

29. On the 19th July 2007 the IT system that hostsSAP ERP system which contains the
Court’s financial information crashed. The systeas not repaired until the £&f August 2007.
After the crash it was also discovered that siheeltf” June 2007 the SAP back up system had not
been operating correctly. As the Court could bt on the back up data they tested and validated
back up data during this period.

30. In late August 2007 the Court implemented a datawery process in order to ensure that
financial data in the SAP system (and from whioh @ourt’'s 2007 financial statements would be
derived) was accurate and complete. During thme tall financial information relating to the
period during which information was not recorded AP was re-input into the restored system
using the supporting documentation held on file.

31. This data recovery exercise was the subject of fligeOof Internal Audit (OIA) review.
The primary objective was to test the accuracy @mipleteness of the re-input exercise through
the use of detailed audit transaction testing. IMised with the OIA division in the planning ofigh
exercise and the sampling and testing regimes agneed before the work was started.

32. In addition, this testing also provided the extéraaditor with assurance that relevant
financial rules and regulations of the Court hadrbeonsistently applied to transactions processed
during this period. The audit did not review odeaks the causes of the incident which has been
the subject of a separate review by the Unitedddatinternational Computer Centre (UNICC).

33. As part of our audit we reviewed the results of @A examination and the working papers
supporting the conclusions of the OIA report. Aseenal auditors we were satisfied that the re-
entry of the financial information into the SAP ®rm is complete, accurate and in compliance with
the financial rules and regulations of the court.

34. The external auditor would like to commend the @dAthis assurance work. This incident
was one of the key audit risks to the audit of 2007 financial statements as the integrity of the
data from which the financial statements are ddriwas in doubt. The level, detail and results of
the testing have provided us with the necessasl lefvassurance to place reliance on the integrity
of the SAP financial information at the year eniVe would also like to mention the cross organ
team who worked on re-inputting the financial imh@tion so diligently ensuring a high quality
recovery.
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35. However, the fact that this incident occurred isseafor concern. We note from the UN
ICC report that the root cause for the SAP crasinaabe determined as log files are no longer
available.

36. It has become clear from the review carried outChg that there were some lapses in
monitoring and controlling the back up procedurbihé the SAP system. The subsequent external
investigations by SAP, Siemens Veritas and Uniteatidds International Computing Centre
(UNICC) have yielded many recommendations for improents to the IT and IT control
environment. As part of our audit we reviewed distussed the ICT division's progress against
these recommendations.

37. From our audit review of the incident and the Csur¢sponse to it we have concluded the
following:

. As the Court continues to grow quickly increasimggsure has been placed on the
ICT division.

. This growth has forced the ICT team to adopt a*fighting” role to ensure that the
IT systems remain operational and available tosuder particular we note the UN
ICC’s assessment that there is a skills gap iraredritical areas.

. Since the crash ICT has collated the recommendatimade by the external
investigation teams and is currently making progremvards implementing these
improvements to the IT environment at the Court. ¥come the positive action
that has been taken.

38. Although all financial information was recovereddamstored or re-input onto SAP and the
ICT division are progressing against improvemenbnemendations made, the failure of the back-
up data which could not be restored represents akmess in the Court’'s business continuity
arrangements and the UN ICC recommend the develupoh@n IT disaster recovery plan as at the
earliest opportunity.

39. We note that the Court’s ICT strategy was updateddécember 2006. However, given that
the SAP system failure occurred more recently &atl the Court needs to develop and implement
an IT disaster recovery plan, we would encourageQburt to ensure that the ICT Strategy takes
account of the arrangements set down in disastaveey plan when it is developed to reflect
current business needs.

Recommendation 4:

We recommend that the ICT division implement theoremendations of the external
investigations into the SAP crash as a matter génery and in particular ensure that contingency
plans for similar system failure are in place tswr business continuity. Such plans may help to
mitigate the risk that key financial information yriae lost through system failure.

Recommendation 5:

We also recommend that the Court ensure thal istrategy reflects the arrangements set
down in the IT disaster recovery plan once it hesnbdeveloped. The IT strategy should show how
contingency arrangements are to be achieved antaired.

Budgetary Controls
40. As part of our audit work we look at all financ@ntrol systems and identify if we can use

the effective operation of these systems to suppartaudit opinion on the financial statements.
We see budget monitoring as a key high level comrassist effective decision making within the
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Court. Where actual financial results closely rabtidgeted results, we are able to take a high
degree of assurance on the accuracy of the finaresialts and tailor our audit approach to detailed
transaction testing accordingly. The Court has owpd and upgraded its financial and budgeting
systems. However, because of the unpredictablerenatiithe Court's business and the ASP’s
requirement for the Court to use the flexibilityadable within its budget headroom, there are a
significant number of budget transfers made withajor programmes.

41. In 2007 there were over 350 budget transfers anmaytd over €9.2 million (10.3% of the
2007 budget of €88.9 million). Given the matexialue and volume of transfers made we do not
rely on budget information to obtain audit assueanod we undertook detailed testing of these
transfers and related expenditure.

42. The key observations from our review of budgetgfars are summarised below:

. We identified an accumulation of budget transfens&380,000 that were processed
within the accounting system as a single transadiud that the approval document
did not have the Prosecutor’s signature.

. At the year end, an open approval for as yet unkntnansfers was given by the
Registrar to the budget controller in Novemberract last minute budget transfers to
meet the financing needs of the high number of yealr PRC approvals, an area on
which we have also commented on in this report.

43. While we understand that budget flexibility is nesary for an evolving organisation where
the nature of their activities is unpredictablesiimportant that for in year financial management
information to be current and of maximum use fazisien making such transfers are minimised.

44, We have noted that the level of movement on budgets been considered by the
Committee on Budget and Finance and that they lssued new guidelines for 2008 with the aim
of reducing the level of transfer activity.

Recommendation 6:

We recommend that the Court ensures that all stafblved in the preparation and
modification of the annual budget:

. Ensure that all future budget requests adequaddlisct current funding needs for the
year, thus minimising the need for transfers.

. In line with the guidance issued by the CommittadBadget and Finance, implement
a clear and organization wide set of guidelinesdlegated authority for approval of
budget transfers and limits.

. Ensure that budget transfer requests are submitéddin advance of the year end,
thus ensuring that any purchases dependant upanalocation of funds can be
approved by PRC, communicated to the vendor andraded against current year
appropriations.

Other Management Issues

Adopting International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

45. The Court’s financial statements are prepared go@ance with United Nations System
Accounting Standards. In November 2005, the UN'ghHLevel Committee on Management

recommended International Public Sector AccountBigndards (IPSAS) as the basis for the
preparation of United Nations (UN) financial stagts from 2010; and in 2006 the General
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Assembly decided to approve the adoption of IPSAStte appropriate financial reporting
framework for the UN.

46. It is important for the Court to take a formal dgon by the appropriate body to adopt
IPSAS and develop a strategy and more detailed folathe implementation of IPSAS. We will
work closely with the Court to provide appropriadvice and assistance with the challenging
preparations for implementing IPSAS. We have predidpreadsheet tools and guidance to the
Registrar to assist towards compliance with the s&amdards and help prepare for audit under
IPSAS. We will continue to provide support as reseey during our period of appointment..

47. The transition is likely to require changes to tieee financial systems, which in turn may

lead to an increased risk in the reliability of amhation produced from these systems. We
understand that the Court's SAP system has thebdapdo be suitably upgraded to accommodate
full accruals accounting and fixed assets accogmequired for IPSAS.

48. The Court is developing a formal implementationnpfar IPSAS. In developing such a
plan we encourage the Court need to consider tloaviag issues:

. An agreed date for the adoption of IPSAS;

. The changes that will be required to its finanoigés and regulations which will need
to be approved by the ASP. In assessing this thet@eeds to consider the lead time
for the approval of these changes in line withglamned implementation date;

. An assessment of whether the existing accountirsgesy SAP can be upgrade to
accommodate IPSAS requirements for full accrualsoagting. Again where
upgrades and additional modules are required thet@eed to consider the lead time
for implementation;

. Training requirements for staff in adopting a faticruals based set of accounting
standards;

. The impact on the Court’s income and expenditurié ascounts for expenditure on a
delivery basis matching expenditure to delivereddgoand services in the accounting
period. The Court will also need to consider thpact of accounting for depreciation;

. The overall cost for implementation taking accooinéach of the issues raised above.
This will need to be built in to any future budgets

Recommendation 7:

We recommend that the Court formally take the slenito adopt IPSAS and develop a
strategy for the adoption of these accounting stadsd We further recommend that a project team
are established for IPSAS implementation and thay treport on regular basis to the Registrar,
Committee on Budget and Finance and ASP.

Accrued Annual Leave

49. In July 2007 the responsibility for recording andnioring staff annual leave was
devolved from the Human Resource division to indliil sections levels within the Court. In
compliance with current United Nations System Agtmg Standards (UNSAS) the Court has
been disclosing the estimated cost of all staifraed annual leave as at 31 December in a note to
the financial statements. In previous audits weeh@aad some concerns about the completeness of
this figure and were keen to ensure that the naewirdstration process was actioned correctly and
could be used to produce reliable year end figures.

50. An internal review of the new accrued leave momigprprocess was performed by the
Court’s OIA which looked at the current operatioithna view to making recommendations to
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make any necessary improvements. At the time wipbeting our audit this report had not yet been
finalised, however initial findings suggest thaitffier improvements to control and further training
IS required to ensure the devolved system opesdtedtively.

51. As the Court moves towards the adoption of Intéomal Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS), in line with other internationedanisations, this employee benefit liabilities
will be reported as a liability in the Court’s bat® sheet. Given the material nature of the moyetar
value of accrued leave it is important for thidbaccurately valued.

52. The estimated value of this liability as at 31 Daber 2007 was €2,806,950. This figure is
material to the users of the financial statementsas such will need to be supported by a full and
valid audit trail. The above figure was derivednfr the information available from the newly
devolved system, but this was not complete dubdauhavailability of some staff leave records at
the year end. A calculation based on average rengpstaff leave days was used to estimate the
missing balance (approx. €500,000). We werefsatisvith this as the figure is currently only a
note in the accounts, but stronger evidence woelddeded for a balance sheet figure.

Recommendation 8:

We recommend that the Court ensure that it revierefally the upcoming OIA report on
annual leave and ensure that recommended improveraes implemented to ensure that annual
leave balances for all staff are accurately reahrdemplete and available for the year end. These
figures should be collated, reviewed and availdble audit ensuring that this figure is fully
supported when it becomes a balance sheet liabilithe adoption of IPSAS accounting standards.

Permanent Premises

53. In December 2007 the ASP passed a resolution oainfirthe arrangements for the
permanent premises as follows:

. It decided that the permanent premises of therat@mnal Criminal Court should be
constructed on the Alexanderkazerne site;

. It further decided that, for the purposes of thehiectural design competition, the
construction costs of the permanent premises shoatlcexceed €103 million at the
2007 price level;

. It accepted those elements of the offer of the Btatie contained in the letter dated 25
January 2006 from the Minister of Foreign Affaifgite host State to the President of
the Assembly of States Parties relating to the ipiow of the land of the
Alexanderkazerne site free of charge;

. It authorized the host State to launch immediadgharchitectural design competition
setting appropriate conditions for such a cometijti

. It decided to establish an Oversight Committeetates Parties as a subsidiary body
of the Assembly to provide strategic oversighttfa project;

. In doing so it requests the Oversight Committee to:

(@ Continue consideration of options for financing tkenstruction of the
permanent premises and related costs, includingctdmepatibility of these
options with the Financial Regulations and RulethefCourt, with a particular
focus on the offer contained in the letter datedJabhuary 2006 from the
Minister of Foreign Affairs of the host State t@tRresident of the Assembly of
States Parties in order to provide recommendatiotise Assembly at its next
session;
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(b)  Continue identifying and clarifying the estimateeemll construction costs of
the project with a view to providing recommendasiam the cost envelope to
the Assembly at its next session;

(c) Continue identifying and quantifying the other cosglated to the project; and

(d) Continuously monitor the functioning and operatiook the governance
structure for the project and, if necessary, prewdcommendations to the
Assembly on any adjustments that may be required;

. The ASP decided to establish a Project Board tovigeo a consultative and
cooperative tripartite structure with the Projeatebtor having final responsibility for
the overall management of the project;

. It requested the Registrar of the Internationahtital Court to establish a Project
Director’s Office;

. Further it authorized the Oversight Committee &niify and hire a Project Director;

. The ASP also decided, that as an extraordinary uneado establish major
programme VII (Project Director's Office) with a dget of €208,500 in order to
establish the Project Director's Office, hire a jBcb Director and staff and cover
other costs associated with the premises projelemtified in annex V to this
resolution; and

. It requests the Registrar to establish a permamemises construction trust fund for
the permanent premises construction project; and

54. In 2007 we reviewed the proposed governance steidtu assess the suitability of the
accountability arrangements this structure providdse tri-partite nature of the project board
provides good representation for the host stage|GIC and the ASP, who will recruit and appoint
the project director. It is also clear that th@jgct board will be accountable to the oversight
committee, composed of ASP, WGH and CBF represeetat

55. As the project director will lead the project bodradvould follow that the project director
will be the key person with ultimate responsibiliigr the project and answerable to the ASP,
however:

. The project director will have an employment cocitraith the Court.
. The project office will be created by the Registrar

. The Registrar will be responsible for creating amahaging a fund to account for
money donated or allocated for the Permanent Pesmis

. And, although not yet certain, the Registrar mayhiag the only person with the
ability to sign contracts on behalf of the ASP.

56. In conclusion, the tri-partite structure allows domput for all stakeholders and the
structure includes an oversight committee populdtedhe ASP. However, at present the full
accountability arrangements are unclear. In pddicuwhile the Registrar is charged with
establishing a project office and project fund amaly also approve project expenditure, it appears
that the project director will not be accountalddhe Registrar and similarly there does not appear
to be a reporting line for the Registrar to the @ight Committee. The proposed structure may give
the Court little control over the project as it wilainly rest with the project director and thejpob
office, but it could be ultimately responsible fbe outcome of the project.

Recommendation 9:
We recommend that the Court in their deliberatitmset up the project office, oversight

committee for the project and appoint the projetator, they ensure that as responsibility for the
project rests with the Registrar as the adminisgabrgan of the Court the project office and
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project director come within the Registrar's sphefeontrol for day to day decision making and
accountability. In turn the Registrar can then repo the Oversight Committee on the progress
made with the project. This ensures that the adinative organ of the Court has overall
responsibility and accountability for the permangmatnises project.

Corporate Governance

57. In previous years we have made recommendationshéoCourt in our reports that
specifically deal with the improvement of corporggvernance arrangements. Below are some
topics we have specifically followed up on in 2007.

Introduction of a Statement of Internal Control (SIC)

58. From discussions with the OIA during our interimdauvisit we were informed that
preparations were underway to draft and submit @ Bith the financial statements for 2007.
However the Registrar in office during 2007 had ptated his tenure at the Court and the new
Registrar did not feel it was appropriate to siffracSIC produced for an accounting period during
which she was not in office.

59. Although we understand the rationale for this denisve feel that with adequate planning
the SIC for 2007 could have been generated andedidy the departing Registrar before
completion of his term. In particular a SIC sholld supported by a process where heads of
division provide formal assurance to the Registegorting on the effectiveness of internal controls
operating in their sphere of control. Such a syst#ntertifications needs to be established to
support the 2008 SIC so that the assurances givémei SIC are soundly based with appropriate
evidence that internal controls are operating &ffely.

Recommendation 10:

We recommend that the Court endeavour to introduSeatement of Control into the 2008
financial statements in line with current corporgt&ernance best practice. We further recommend
that the Court establishes a system where headwisfon provide an annual assurance statement
confirming that the internal controls operatinglieir sphere of controls are working effectively or
where necessary such a statement should repodntrotfailure.

Risk Management

60. During our 2007 audit work we followed up on theu@its progress in developing a Risk
management system. At the time of writing our 208port the Court had decided to appoint
consultants to conduct a risk identification andeasment exercise. At the time of this report the
Court had selected a consultant for this post tjinaitendering exercise.

61. We welcome the fact that the Court is progressimg Birea and note that the risk
assessment project charter has been developed sdillown the resources required to undertake
risk identification and the overall time frame fibe completion of this work which is expected to
be completed in November 2008. Once the risk ifleation exercise is complete, we encourage
the Court to collate a manageable number of kejnbas risks into a usable risk register. The risk
register should be reviewed and updated regulanly ased by senior management and the
Oversight Committee.

Internal Oversight Committee (I0OC)
62. In prior years we have made recommendations forChert to improve the format and

mandate of the IOC in line with current best pi@etind to enhance its governance structure to that
of a comparable Audit Committee.
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63. During 2007 we noted that there was little changéahe existing structure of the I0C,
which only met once in the year. However, the €bas been working on a new mandate for the
IOC, which is to be re-named the “Audit Committeé’he new mandate incorporates some of our
recommendations, including the addition of 2 indejmnt members, and there are plans to
implement the remaining best practice changes ina@aemental fashion.

Due to the lack of meetings in 2007 and limited nges in the format we have not
reviewed the 10C any further, we will fully revietive new Audit Committee’s performance in our
2008 report.

Recommendation 11:

We recommend that the new Audit Committee manbdatenplemented fully and that the
modified committee endeavour to meet adequatelgutiitout 2008 with the aim of providing
adequate financial audit oversight.

Follow up on 2006 Audit Topics

64. We report on the progress made with previous aedibmmendations in Annex A where
the Registry have provided details of the progreasle against each of our recommendations and
we provide our comments on this progress. In oveahs we welcome the progress that the Court
has made in relation to our recommendations onrnmdition technology controls and policies.
Similarly the Court has made good progress withramimg controls over bank reconciliations and
also finalising the judges’ pension scheme. Howewer note that in some areas discussed in this
report such as the creation of an audit committekeanbedding of risk management progress has
been slower.
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Annex A

Follow up of previous audit recommendations

Rec | Recommendation Responsibility | Action Plan Expected completion date | Audit Comment

1 | We recommend that the Registry The majority of the issues with of the | Complete We confirmed that
Court should ensure the travel claims module has been the year end travel
effective operation of the resolved. The backlog has been module issues had
travel claims module and removed. The planned outstanding been resolved in
that they should review the modules have been reviewed. There are 2007.
implementation of no business critical functionalities
outstanding planned SAP outstanding except for Asset
modules and functionalities Management. The completion of Asset
to obtain business critical Management is tied to the IPSAS
functionality as a matter of implementation.
priority.

2 | We recommend that the Registry The draft SAP security policy has beenComplete We have confirmed
Security Policy be clarified superseded in 2007 with the the issue and content
to include enforcement promulgation of the Administrative of these
procedures for breaches of Instructions ICC/AI/2007/001, Administrative
the policy; approved by ICC/AI/2007/003 and ICC/AI/2007/005. Instructions.

Senior Management and
released to all staff.
3 | We also recommend that, | Registry Staff is briefed on controls like The pilot is underway, The implementation of

periodically, staff be
required to confirm
awareness and compliance
with the IT security policy.

passwords etc during the induction
training. A pilot will be undertaken to
address this recommendation

further. Users may be required to acc
the terms of the policy during the

currently being tested by th
ICT division.
Implementation is expected
epy end of June 2008.

password change regime.

ethis will be confirmed as
part of our 2008 audit.
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Rec | Recommendation Responsibility | Action Plan Expected completion date | Audit Comment

4 | We recommend that periodjcRegistry Periodic changing of passwords are | Complete Prompting for
changing of passwords is enforced and the Court does enforce Ipg- passwords and log on
enforced and that, in the in restrictions. restrictions seen in
absence of log-in obtaining our IT
restrictions, the Court should profiles at the court
consider monitoring for the audit period.
exception reports detailing
unsuccessful user access
attempts.

5 | We also recommend that | Registry All access profiles are confirmed by th&€Complete We confirmed that
units provide periodic units. Any changes to the access rights this was the case
feedback to the IT division are confirmed by the owners of the during our review of
confirming the business information On-going regular practice: ICT in the 2007
requirement for unit user units provide periodic feedback to audit.
access profiles. confirm the business requirement for

unit user access profiles.
6 | We recommend that the Registry The Court’s approach to system suppofthe Customer Competency This has been

Court consider its approach
to system support to ensure
that adequate cost-effective
support systems are
maintained in the most cost
effective way.

has been reviewed. To ensure more
adequate cost-effective support is has
been decided to plan for the creation ¢
Customer Competency Centre which
will include 3 additional staff members
to support SAP. The centre will be
proposed in the Court’'s budget 2008.

Centre has been created a
recruitment of additional
fsaff is currently ongoing.

ndonfirmed as part of
our audit and long
form report work
with the IT division.

02/L/1dSV-22l
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Rec | Recommendation Responsibility | Action Plan Expected completion date | Audit Comment

7 | If the Court continues its Registry The Court is planning to reduce its Complete Agreed as per above
reliance on external reliance on external consultancy support point.
consultancy support we (see previous recommendation answerr).
recommend that the contract In the few cases where external
for the support services be consultancy support will still be
competitively tendered to required, the Court will organise a full-
provide assurance that best scope tender.
value is being achieved.

8 | We also recommend that | Registry The recommendation has been Complete This was confirmed
software consultant access|to implemented and access to the during the audit with
the production system production system is now strictly the head of the IT
should be strictly limited. In limited. Only in very specific cases of division within the
the event that access has to troubleshooting of specialised areas, court.
be provided, a system log gf does a full login have to be enabled.
changes should be reviewed
to detect any unauthorised pr
improper actions.

9 | To ensure that this key Registry In 2006, there was a delay in the first| Complete We confirmed that

control operates effectively
throughout the reporting
period, we recommend that
ICC ensure regular and
timely reconciliation of all
bank accounts. In the
absence of such a key
control, ICC should ensure
that alternative checking
procedures are invoked to
mitigate the risk of fraud or
error.

half of the year to process bank
reconciliations due to SAP configuratic
errors. After resolving this SAP

problem, all bank reconciliations have

n

been processed retrospectively and have

been completed within one month afte
the end of the month in later months.
mentioned in the audit report, no error
or fraud had been found upon
completion of the delayed bank
reconciliations.

-
AS
S5

the reconciliation
process improved
greatly during 2007.
By the end of the
period we were
satisfied that all
significant accounts
were being
reconciled within an
acceptable time
period.

02/L/1dSV-22l
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Rec | Recommendation Responsibility | Action Plan Expected completion date | Audit Comment

10 | We continue to encourage | Registry The Court is currently negotiating the| June 2008 clarification As with our 2006
the Court to finalise the contract with Allianz NL and expects t9 addendum under preparatipmeport we continue to
arrangements for the Judges sign the agreement with Allianz in July by legal adviser encourage the court
Pension Scheme so that it 2007 at which time, pension payments to conclude this
has suitable arrangements |n already being processed by the Court process and ensure a
place to administer the will be transferred to Allianz NL. pension administrator
scheme when pension is in place prior to a
payments become due. judge retiring.

11 | We recommend that the Registry With the assistance of Ernst & Young| June 2008 clarification We commend the
Court confirms that all Actuaries, the Court will ensure that theaddendum under preparatiomourt in engaging
entittements have been contract with Allianz will cover all by legal adviser Actuaries to ensure
accounted for by Allianz in benefits to judges in accordance with the that all entittements
determining the premium ICC's pension scheme for judges. are factored into the
payable for the Judges scheme.
administration of the Judges
Pension Scheme prior to
contracting them to insure
the scheme.

12 We recommend that the Registry The Court has obtained the estimated Management decisionis| We encourage the
Court considers the potential actuary valuation from Ernst & Young needed as to whether or nptCourt's management

cost of disability payments
that may have to be made
for judges over 65 years o
age if they were to becomé
disabled, and whether any
financial provision should
be established for this
liability.

A1

Actuaries, and will include this either g
a provision in the budget, or in the
accounts on a yearly basis.

agCourt will fund. Allianz will
not insure

to make a decision
on this issue. As
experienced in 2007
- providing for
disability payments
can be very
expensive if incurred
in one year. If
insurance is not
possible then a
provision may be

necessary.

02/L/1dSV-22l
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Rec

Recommendation

Responsibility

Action Plan

Expected completion date

Audit Comment

13

We recommend that any
permanent premises into
which the Court moves
should be adaptable
according to the level of
Court activities, so that if
the workload of the Court
were to reduce, parts of th
building could be easily
separated from the court in
order to rent to third parties.

1)

POPP

At present the states parties have o
expressed their preference for new bt
premises for the Court, but did not yg
exclude completely other options sug
as staying at the ARC. As regards th
possible construction of tailor-made
premises, the Court submitted a detai
functional brief as early as March 200
This brief states the basic requiremer
of the Court as the user of the buildin

Two important concepts, that had
already been mentioned in the projec
presentation submitted by the Court i
2005, have been integrated in this bri

A) Flexibility, which should allow

growth within existing premises and B
Scalability, which means that a possik
extension of the building should alrea
be considered in the design. These
concepts will subsequently have to b

translated by the architect. In this
respect the Court is seeking to be
integrated in the governance structure
the project, so as to ensure the dialog
with the architect.

nly The Assembly of States
iltParties will take decisions
t on the Court's permanent
h premises at its next sessid
e in November 2007.
Meanwhile, the dialogue
edith the states is maintaine
7. through The Hague
tsWorking Group (" HWG").
. The Court participated in
three expert meetings
rtconvened by the HWG so &

is scheduled for Septembe
) (to be updated)
le

y

e

of
ue

1"

d

Noted, we will
continue to monitor
the progress of the

n Permanent Premises

Project.

AS
n to explain its requirements|.
ef Another meeting of experts

=

14

We recommend that before
Field Offices are granted
remote access to SAP, ar

extensive review is carried

out of risks to data security,
with mitigating controls put
in place.

Registry

All data in the SAP system will resid
in Headquarters, The Hague. All SA
data is encrypted if accessed outside
SAP application
controls. Physical controls will be
reviewed as recommended.

e Complete: all SAP system
P data reside in the
the Headquarters, and is
encrypted if accessed
outside the SAP applicatio
controls. Physical controls
are performed.

-

Noted.

02/L/1dSV-22l
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Rec

Recommendation

Responsibility

Action Plan

Expected completion date

Audit Comment

15

We also recommend that if
there is delegation of extra
procurement authorities to
the field, approval still need
to be sought from the Hea
of Field Office for each
purchase.

~=wn

Registry

Operational procurement authority ta

place within SAP, which is not availab
in the field. Nevertheless, additional
procurement authority will be given

through petty cash increase or other
measures. Approval will be given by the FOM also became one of

Section Head as certifying officer. Th
process for approval will be strictly
monitored by the logistic assistants w

will be responsible for 2 or 3 countries,

advising Field Office Manager on the
process and forwarding relevant

information for the section head to make

an informed decision.

esPetty cash level has beer
e increased and Field Office
Managers (FOM) allowed t
use these funds for payme
of DSA in certain cases.

e the signatories of their loca
banks allowing them to ac
ndocally on instructions from
headquarters. Process
review ongoing.

Noted; this change
was noted by the

D external auditor as
ntpart of our testing of
2007 expenditures.

16

We recommend that the
appointed consultant
responsible for carrying out
the risk assessment for th
Court provides a risk
evaluation matrix
demonstrating the key risk
to the Court. The Court
should use this information
to prioritise risks and
allocate resources to
establish mitigating control
accordingly.

D

UJ

1°2}

Court

The Court is grateful for the
recommendation, which will be taking
into careful consideration when

implementing the risk management plan. management consultants

The pros and cons of the

recommendation will weighted agains

industry best practices in order to ens
maximum efficiency for the Court.

The current version of the
project charter defined by
the Court and the risk

comprises a risk matrix

ure by the external auditor,
ranking risks in terms of

likelihood and impact. The
matrix will be used as one

of the process to determin
the highest ranking risks ar
their associated priority
levels.

t similar to the one proposed

of the tool in the first phase

D

We have confirmed
as part of our audit
that the Court has
selected consultant to
perform risk
management
exercise. We will
review the progress
of this review in our
2008 audit.

d
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Rec

Recommendation

Responsibility

Action Plan

Expected completion date

Audit Comment

17

A risk register containing
the information set out

above should be used by tTe
|

Court as an active diagnos
tool to manage risks on ar]
ongoing basis. The risk
register should be reviewe
by the Oversight Committe
and an annual submissior
should be made to the
Court's governing body to
bring key risks to their

Court

ic

=N

D

attention.

See recommendation 16 above

We will confiren
post consultant court
monitoring and
review of relevant
risks.

02/L/1dSV-22l
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Annex B

Scope and audit approach

Audit Scope and objectives

Our audit examined the financial statements of Ittiernational Criminal Court for the
financial period ended 31 December 2007 in accamlavith the Financial Regulations. The main
purpose of the audit was to enable us to form ama@pon whether the financial statements fairly
presented the Fund’s financial position, its suspliunds and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2007; and whether they had been propeglyaped in accordance with the Financial
Regulations.

Audit Standards

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Intéwnat Standards on Auditing as issued
by the International Auditing and Assurance Stadsi@oard. These standards required us to plan
and carry out the audit so as to obtain reasoradgarance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement. Management were rediplen®r preparing these financial statements
and the External Auditor is responsible for expressan opinion on them, based on evidence
obtained during the audit.

Audit Approach

Our audit included a general review of the accaountsystems and such tests of the
accounting records and internal control procedasase considered necessary in the circumstances.
The audit procedures are designed primarily forpghgose of forming an opinion on the Court’s
financial statements. Consequently our work didl ingolve detailed review of all aspects of
financial and budgetary systems from a managemersppctive, and the results should not be
regarded as a comprehensive statement of all wes&adhat exist or all improvements that might
be made.

Our audit also included focused work in which aditerial areas of the financial statements
were subject to direct substantive testing. Alfemeamination was carried out to ensure that the
financial statements accurately reflected the Ce®umtcounting records; that the transactions
conformed to the relevant financial regulations goderning body directives; and that the audited
accounts were fairly presented.
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Statement of income and expenditure and changesfiand balances for the period ending 31 December 200

International Criminal Court

(in thousands of eurps

Statement |

General Fund &

Notes

Notes

Working Capital Fund ref. Trust Funds ref. Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Income
Assessed contributions 88,872 80,417 41 - - 88,872 80,417
Voluntary contributions - - 1,339 1,641 5.1 1,339 1,641
Interest income 3,104 1,662 4.2 24 41 5.2 3,128 1,703
Other/miscellaneous income 204 104 43 - - 204 104
Total income 92,180 82,183 1,363 1,682 93,543 83,865
Expenditure
Disbursed expenditures 63,052 52,831 44 1,081 1,615 S7 64,133 54,446
Unliquidated obligations 10,914 11,721 4.4 193 138 S7 11,107 11,859
Provision for pension liabilities 3,424 - 45 - - 3,424 -
Provision for ILO cases 74 126 4.6 - - 74 126
Total expenditure 77,464 64,678 1,274 1,753 78,738 66,431
Excess/(sh_ortfall) of income over 14716 17,505 89 (71) 14,805 17,434

expenditure
Savings on, or cancellation of, prior periods’

obligations 2,933 1,867 4.7 15 20 2,948 1,887
Credits to States Parties (6,326) (10,024) 4.8 - - (6,326) (10,024)
Refund to donors - - (93) (125) 5.3 (93) (125)
Net increase in Working Capital Fund 705 1,127 4.9 - - 705 1,127
Reserve for pension of judges - (2,038) 45 - - - (2,038)
Fund balances at beginning of financial period a7 36,341 453 629 45,231 36,970
Fund balances as at 31 December 56,806 44,778 464 453 57,270 45,231

Signed (Marian Kashou’)

Chief Finance Officer

02/L/dSV-22l



96¢

International Criminal Court
Statement of assets, liabilities, reserves and furizhlances as at 31 December 2007
(in thousands of eurds

Statement Il

Wo?k?r?ge rélla';il:QIdF%nd Mot Trust Funds et Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Assets
Cash and term deposits 77,236 56,265 687 708 77,923 56,973
Assessed contributions receivable from States 8,149 11,969  4.10 R - 8,149 11,969

Parties

Voluntary contributions receivable - - 207 156 207 156
Other contributions receivable 19 95 4.11 - - 19 95
Interfund balances receivable 26 91 4.12 - - 26 91
Other accounts receivable 4,426 4,051 4.13 8 7 5.4 4,434 4,058
Deferred charges — education grants 330 2704.14 - - 330 270
Total assets 90,186 72,741 902 871 91,088 73,612
Liabilities
Contributions/payments received in advance 9,161 7447, 415 223 191 5.5 9,384 7,935
Unliquidated obligations 10,914 11,721 193 138 11,107 11,859
Interfund balances payable - - 22 88 5.6 22 88
Provision for accrued pension of judges 9,715 6,291 4.5 - - 9,715 6,291
Provision for ILO cases 74 126 4.6 - - 74 126
Other accounts payable 3,516 2,081 416 - - 3,516 2,081
Total liabilities 33,380 27,963 438 417 33,818 28,380
Reserves and fund balances
Working Capital Fund 7,406 6,701 4.9 - - 7,406 6,701
Contingency Fund 9,169 9,169 4.17 - 9,169 9,169
Reserve for unpaid contributions 2,298 5,078 4.18 - - 2,298 5,078
Cumulative surplus 37,933 23,830 sS4 464 454 38,397 24,284
Total reserves and fund balances 56,806 44,778 464 454 57,270 45,232
Total liabilities, reserves and fund balances 90,83 72,741 902 871 91,088 73,612

Signed (Marian Kashou’)

Chief Finance Officer ....ooooviiiiiiiiii e
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International Criminal Court

Statement of cash flow as at 31 December 2007

(in thousands of eurps

Statement 1l

General Fund &

Working Capital Fund Trust Funds Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities
Net excess/(shortfall) of income over expendit@&iement I) 14,716 17,505 89 (71) 14,805 17,434
Contributions receivable (increase)/decrease 3,896 3,380 (51) (152) 3,845 3,228
Interfund balances receivable (increase)/decrease 65 97 - - 65 97
Other accounts receivable (increase)/decrease (375) (1,695) @) - (376) (1,695)
Deferred charges (increase)/decrease (60) (101) - (60) (101)
Contributions received in advance increase/(deejeas 1,417 4,173 31 (633) 1,448 3,540
Unliquidated obligations increase/(decrease) (807) (1,511) 55 (85) (752) (1,596)
Interfund balances payable increase/(decrease) - - (66) 97) (66) 97)
Provision for accrued pension of judges increasef@hse) 3,424 2,038 - - 3,424 2,038
Provision for ILO cases increase/(decrease) (52) 126 - - (52) 126
Accounts payable increase/(decrease) 1,435 456 - - 1,435 456
Less: interest income (3,104) (1,662) (24) (41) (3,128) (1,703)
Net cash from operating activities 20,555 22,806 33 (1,079) 20,588 21,727
Cash flows from investing and financing activities
Plus: interest income 3,104 1,662 24 41 3,128 1,703
Net cash from investing and financing activities 3,104 1,662 24 41 3,128 1,703
Cash flows from other sources
Net increase/(decrease) in Working Capital Fund 705 1,127 - - 705 1,127
Savings on, or cancellation of, prior periods’ ghtions 2,933 1,867 15 20 2,948 1,887
Reserve for pension of judges - (2,038) - - - (2,038)
Credits to States Parties (6,326) (10,024) - - (6,326) (10,024)
Refund to donors - - (93) (125) (93) (125)
Net cash from other resources (2,688) (9,068) (78) (105) (2,766) (9,173)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and term deposits 0,972 15,400 (21) (1,143) 20,950 14,257
Cash and term deposits at beginning of financiebge 56,265 40,865 708 1,851 56,973 42,716
Cash and term deposits at 31 December (Statemen) Il 77,236 56,265 687 708 77,923 56,973
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International Criminal Court
Statement of appropriations for the period 1 Januay to 31 December 2007
(in thousands of eurps

Statement IV

. Appropriation Appropriation Total . Unliquidated - Total Unencumbered
Major Programme al L Disbursements a7 Provisions .
approved transfer Appropriation obligations expenditures balance
Judiciary 9,999 237 10,236 6,636 176 3,424 10,236 0
Office of the Prosecutor 23,371 - 23,371 17,221 34,1 74 18,429 4,942
Registry 48,841 - 48,841 36,730 8,100 - 44,830 4,01
Secretariat of the
Assembly of States Parties 4,378 (237) 4,141 1,929 847 - 2,776 1,365
Investment in the Court's 2,283 - 2,283 536 657 - 1,193 1,090
Premises
Total 88,872 - 88,872 63,052 10,914 3,498 77,464 11,408

a/ In accordance with resolution ICC-ASP/6/Restvappropriation transfer of €236,722 was made fitbim Secretariat of the Assembly of States Parbi¢iset
Judiciary to fund the liabilities of the pensionjudges.
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International Criminal Court
Status of contributions as at 31 December 2007

Schedule 1

(in eurog
Outstandin h
States Parties 1 Jas at i Outstanding Assessed Credits from Collections Outstanding Total Credit on Fr%eelgg:fés
;gg?ry Collections 2006 outstanding 2007 receipts t0 2008
Prior years 2007
Afghanistan 2,818 417 2,401 1,603 - 1,603 4,004 -
Albania - - - 9,618 - 9,618 - - 1,401
Andorra - - - 12,824 1,040 11,784 - - 1,006
Antigua and Barbuda - - - 3,206 792 2,414 - - 2,659
Argentina 2,652,451 686,401 1,966,050 520,9 - - 520,972 2,487,022 -
Australia - - - 2,864,543 331,240 2,533,303 - - 225,398
Austria - - - 1,421,852 178,686 1,243,166 - - 110,337
Barbados - - - 14,427 2,081 1,647 10,699 10,699 -
Belgium - - - 1,766,495 222,423 1,544,072 - - 276,860
Belize a/ - - - 1,603 1,603 - - - 565
Benin 2,818 2,818 - 1,603 - 1,603 - - 3,362
Bolivia 36,715 1,202 35,513 9,618 - - 9,618 45,131 -
Bosnia & Herzegovina - - - 9,618 2,274 7,344 - - 1,139
Botswana - - - 22,442 2,515 19,927 - - 1,764
Brazil 5,888,605 5,888,605 - 1,404,219 - 271,186 1,133,033 1,133,033 -
Bulgaria - - - 32,060 3,536 28,524 - - 4,711
Burkina Faso 6,872 6,872 - 3,206 - 3,206 - - 513
Burundi 2,982 148 2,834 1,603 - - 60B 4,437 -
Cambodia 184 184 - 1,603 - 234 1,369 1,369 -
Canada - - - 4,772,102 105 4,771,997 - - 738,136
Central African Republic 2,982 148 2,834 60B - - 1,603 4,437 -
Chad - - - 1,603 - - 1,603 1,603 -
Colombia - - - 168,314 36,427 131,887 - - 32,985 83,766
Comoros 267 - 267 1,603 - - 1,603 1,870 -
Congo 3,439 3,439 - 1,603 - 1,603 - - -
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Outstanding

: as at : : Total Credit on Rece_ipts
States Parties 1 January Collections Outstanding Assessed Credits from Collections Outstanding outstanding 2007 receipts rt((e)lazlt(l)rg)%
2007 2006
Prior years 2007
Costa Rica 77,251 77,251 - 51,295 - 30,388 20,907 20,907
Croatia - - - 80,149 - 80,149 - - 11,058
Cyprus - - - 70,532 1 70,531 - - 10,572
Democratic Republic of the 12,187 461 11,726 4,809 - 4,809 16,535 -
Congo
Denmark - - - 1,184,610 194,692 989,918 - - 93,328
Djibouti 1,410 154 1,256 1,603 - - 1,603 2,859 -
Dominica 1,524 154 1,370 1,603 - ,608 2,973 -
Dominican Republic 76,138 - 76,138 38,472 - - 38,472 114,610 -
Ecuador 4,569 4,569 - 33,663 - 33,663 - - 2,816
Estonia - - - 25,648 2,496 23,152 - - 3,560
Fiji 5,657 5,657 - 4,809 - 696 4,113 4,113
Finland - - - 904,086 110,902 793,184 - - 70,159
France - - - 10,100,440 1,254,641 8,845,799 - - 1,572,265
Gabon 18,152 14,834 3,318 12,824 - 12,824 16,142 -
Gambia 1,410 154 1,256 1,603 - 03,6 2,859 -
Georgia 4,288 4,288 - 4,809 - 4,809 - - 373
Germany - - - 13,748,845 322 13,748,523 - - 1,083,828
Ghana a/ - - - 6,412 6,412 - - - 10,671
Greece - - - 955,382 110,251 845,131 - - 74,139
Guinea 12,878 639 12,239 1,603 - ,603 13,842 -
Guyana 1,460 1,460 - 1,603 - 1,520 83 83
Honduras 13,627 769 12,858 8,014 - 8,014 20,872 -
Hungary - - - 391,130 26,215 364,915 - - 30,598
Iceland - - - 59,311 7,076 52,235 - - 9,049
Ireland - - - 713,331 72,825 640,506 - - 101,119
Italy 2,131,916 2,131,916 8,141,586 ,148,586 - - 1,270,723
Japan - - - 4,887,949 - 4,887,949 - - -
Jordan - - - 19,236 - 19,236 - - 1,514
Kenya - - - 16,030 - 16,030 - - 3,186
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Outstanding

. as at N ) Total Credit on Receipts
States Parties 1 January Collections Outstanding Assessed Credits from Collections Outstanding outstanding 2007 receipts rt((e)lazlt(l)rg)%
2007 2006
Prior years 2007

Latvia - - - 28,854 3,120 25,734 - - 2,944
Lesotho a/ - - - 1,603 1,603 - - - 266
Liberia 3,073 3,073 - 1,603 - 1,603 - - -
Liechtenstein - - - 16,030 1,039 14,991 - - 1,898
Lithuania - - - 49,693 - 49,693 - - -
Luxembourg - - - 136,254 3 136,251 - - 10,723
Malawi 4,946 154 4,792 1,603 - 603 6,395 -
Mali 2,818 2,818 - 1,603 - 1,603 - - 8,096
Malta - - - 27,251 9 27,242 - - 3,946
Marshall Islands 3,076 131 2,945 1,603 - 1,603 4,548 -
Mauritius - - - 17,633 - 17,633 - - 2,806
Mexico - - - 3,617,948 70 3,617,878 - - 280,758
Mongolia - - - 1,603 - 1,603 - - 255
Montenegro - - - 1,603 - 1,603 - - 124
Namibia - - - 9,618 - 9,618 - - 761
Nauru 2,798 154 2,644 1,603 - 3,60 4,247 -
Netherlands - - - 3,002,400 351,634 2,650,766 - - 232,991
New Zealand - - - 410,365 45,984 364,381 - - 60,742
Niger 4,528 154 4,374 1,603 - 3,60 5,977 -
Nigeria 116,359 116,359 - 76,944 - 76,944 - - 5,126
Norway - - - 1,253,538 27 1,253,511 - - 97,276
Panama 6,740 6,740 - 36,869 - 27,653 9,216 9,216

Paraguay - - - 8,014 3,297 2,616 2,101 2,101

Peru 210,009 65,471 144,538 125,033 - 125,033 269,571 -
Poland - - - 803,098 95,918 707,180 - - 62,321
Portugal - - - 844,776 97,792 746,984 - - 66,474
Republic of Korea - - - 3,483,297 373,598 3,109,699 - - 270,309
Romania - - - 112,209 12,480 99,729 - - 16,553
Saint Kitts and Nevis 267 267 - 1,603 - 1,603 - - 124
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Outstanding

: as at : : Total Credit on Rece_ipts

States Parties 1 January Collections Outstanding Assessed Credits from Collections Outstanding outstanding 2007 receipts rt((e)lazlt(l)rg)%

2007 2006
Prior years 2007

Saint Vincent and the 3,075 131 2,944 1,603 - 1,603 547, -

Grenadines

Samoa - - - 1,603 944 659 - - 246

San Marino - - - 4,809 - 4,809 - - 765

Senegal 561 561 - 6,412 - 6,412 - - 590

Serbia - - - 33,663 12 33,651 - - 2,649

Sierra Leone 2,566 154 2,412 1,603 - 1,603 4,015 -

Slovakia - - - 100,988 10,608 90,380 - - 14,506

Slovenia - - - 153,887 3 153,884 - - 12,100

South Africa - - - 464,867 60,742 404,125 - - 74,256

Spain - - - 4,757,674 524,326 338,080 3,895,268 385 -

Sweden - - - 1,716,802 207,651 1,509,151 - - 263,721

Switzerland - - - 1,949,236 43 1,949,193 - - 151,264

Tajikistan 2,339 1,435 904 1,603 - 1,603 2,507 -

The Former Yugoslav Rep. 8,456 8,456 - 8,014 - 8,014 - - -

of Macedonia

Timor-Leste 1,410 1,410 - 1,603 - 1,603 - - 126

Trinidad and Tobago - - - 43,281 4,561 38,720 - - 6,236

Uganda 22,621 22,621 - 4,809 - 1,254 3,555 3,555 -

United Kingdom - - - 10,647,059 1,274,827 9,372,232 - - 1,627,366

United Republic of Tanzania 74 74 - 9,618 - 9,618 - - 1,651

Uruguay 134,318 134,318 - 43,281 - 19,681 23,600 23,600 -
Venezuela 470,577 470,577 - 320,598 - 320,598 - - 47,402
Zambia 5,965 3,986 1,979 1,603 - 1,603 3,582 -
Total (105 States Parties) 11,969,176 9,671,584 2,297,592 88,871,800 5,638,846 77,382,017 5,850,942 8,148,534 9,077,165 83,766

a/ In 2007, credit on 2006 receipts reported foliBe Ghana and Lesotho are €2,014, €16,469 andl®] respectively. Only €1,603, €6,412 and €1,683eported

in 2007 as collections against 2007 assessed ¢minins. The remaining amounts of €411, €10,057€4r, respectively are included in the amountsfedit on
2007 receipts to be applied against future yeagsitdbutions.
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Schedule 2
International Criminal Court
Status of Working Capital Fund as at 31 December Z¥
(in euros)

2007 2006
Balance at beginning of financial period 6,606,176 5,276,783
Receiptg/(refunds)
Receipts from States Parties 780,453 1,329,393
Withdrawals - -
Balance as at 31 December 7,386,629 6,606,176
Established level 7,405,983 6,701,400
Less: due from States Parties (Schedule 3) 19,354 5,229
Balance as at 31 December 7,386,629 6,606,176
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International Criminal Court
Status of advances to the Working Capital Fund asté81 December 2007

Schedule 3

(in eurog
States Parties Working Capital Fund ~ Cumulative paynents Outstanding Receti(?tzsorggating
Afghanistan 111 111 - -
Albania 661 661 - -
Andorra 882 882 - -
Antigua and Barbuda 221 221 - -
Argentina 35,835 18,537 17,298
Australia 197,033 197,033 - -
Austria 97,802 97,802 - -
Barbados 992 992 - -
Belgium 121,505 121,505 - -
Belize 110 110 - -
Benin 111 111 - -
Bolivia 661 285 376 -
Bosnia & Herzegovina 660 660 - -
Botswana 1,545 1,545 - -
Brazil 96,587 96,587 - -
Bulgaria 2,205 2,205 - -
Burkina Faso 221 221 - -
Burundi 110 92 18 -
Cambodia 111 111 - -
Canada 328,241 328,241 -
Central African Republic 110 92 18
Chad 110 0 110
Colombia 11,577 11,577 - -
Comoros 110 0 110 -
Congo 110 110 - -
Costa Rica 3,529 3,529 - -
Croatia 5,512 5,512 - -
Cyprus 4,851 4,851 - -
Democratic Republic of the Congo 330 205 125 -
Denmark 81,482 81,482 - -
Djibouti 110 110 - -
Dominica 110 110 - -
Dominican Republic 2,646 1,907 739
Ecuador 2,315 2,315 - -
Estonia 1,765 1,765 - -
Fiji 331 331 - -
Finland 62,187 62,187 - -
France 694,740 694,740 -
Gabon 881 881 - -
Gambia 110 110 - -
Georgia 330 330 - -
Germany 945,687 945,687 -
Ghana 441 441 - -
Greece 65,713 65,713 - -
Guineaa/ 110 -135 245 -
Guyana 110 110 - -
Hondura 550 460 90 -
Hungary 26,903 26,903 -
Iceland 4,080 4,080 - -



States Parties

Working Capital Fund

Cumulative paynents

Outstanding

Receipts relating

Ireland 49,065 49,065 -
Italy 560,004 560,004 -
Japan 1,629,316 1,629,316 -
Jordan 1,322 1,322 -
Kenya 1,102 1,102 -
Latvia 1,984 1,984 -
Lesotho 110 110 -
Liberia 110 110 -
Liechtenstein 1,102 1,102 -
Lithuania 3,418 3,418 -
Luxembourg 9,373 9,373 -
Malawi 110 52 58
Mali 111 111 -
Malta 1,874 1,874 -
Marshall Islands 109 91 18
Mauritius 1,213 1,213 -
Mexico 248,854 248,854 -
Mongolia 110 110 -
Montenegro 110 110 -
Namibia 662 662 -
Nauru 109 91 18
Netherlands 206,515 206,515 -
New Zealand 28,226 28,226 -
Niger 110 15 95
Nigeria 5,293 5,293 -
Norway 86,224 86,224 -
Panama 2,536 2,536 -
Paraguay 552 552 -
Peru 8,600 8,600 -
Poland 55,240 55,240 -
Portugal 58,107 58,107 -
Republic of Korea 239,594 239,594 -
Romania 7,718 7,718 -
Saint Kitts and Nevis 110 110 -
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines 109 91 18
Samoa 110 110 -
San Marino 330 330 -
Senegal 441 441 -
Serbia 2,315 2,315 -
Sierra Leone 109 91 18
Slovakia 6,946 6,946 -
Slovenia 10,585 10,585 -
South Africa 31,975 31,975 -
Spain 327,248 327,248 -
Sweden 118,088 118,088 -
Switzerland 134,075 134,075 -
Tajikistan 109 109 -
The Former Yugoslav Rep. of 552 552 -
Macedonia

Timor-Leste 110 110 -
Trinidad and Tobago 2,977 2,977 -
Uganda 329 329 -
United Kingdom 732,338 732,338 -
United Republic of Tanzania 662 662 -
Uruguay 2,977 2,977 -
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States Parties Working Capital Fund ~ Cumulative paynents Outstanding ~ Receipts relating

to 2008
Venezuela 22,050 22,050 - -
Zambia 111 111 - -
Total (105 States Parties) 7,405,983 7,386,629 19,354 -

a/ The negative amount for the cumulative payment&iinea is caused by the refund of the Workingi@apund (WCF) portion of the cash

surplus for 2005, being €290; this decreased tlal @ssessed WCF for Guinea from €400 to €110.\WWhé payments actually received as at
31 December 2007 were €155.
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Schedule 4
International Criminal Court
Status of cash surplus as at 31 December 2007
(in euros)
2007 2006
Current year
Credits
Receipts of assessed contributions 83,020,858 785325
Miscellaneous income 3,308,350 1,766,020
86,329,208 75,291,643
Charges
Disbursed expenditures 63,052,531 52,831,394
Unliquidated obligations 10,913,607 11,721,338
Provision for pension liabilities 3,423,734 -
Provision for ILO cases 73,711 126,078
77,463,583 64,678,810
Provisional cash surplus/(deficit) 8,865,625 10,6833
Contributions receivable 5,850,942 6,891,577
Exlt;ess/(shortfall) of income over expenditure (Stateent 14,716,567 17,504,410
Disposition of prior year's provisional  surplug(deficit)
Prior year’s provisional surplus/(deficit) 10,6128 (5,609,732)
Plus: Receipt of prior periods’ assessed contrilgtio 9,671,584 10,068,084
Saingg on, or cancellation of, prior period 2,032,635 1,867,180
obligations
Prior year’s cash surplus/(deficit) 23,217,052 6,32532
Total cash surplus (Statement Il) 37,933,619 23,8292
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Schedule 5
International Criminal Court
Shares of States Parties in the 2006 cash surplus
(in eurog

States Parties 2006 scale of assessment Surplus
Afghanistan 0.00398 923
Albania 0.00994 2,309
Andorra 0.00994 2,309
Antigua and Barbuda 0.00597 1,385
Argentina 1.90117 441,395
Australia 3.16596 735,042
Austria 1.70827 396,609
Barbados 0.01989 4,617
Belgium 2.12589 493,568
Belize 0.00199 462
Benin 0.00398 923
Bolivia 0.01790 4,155
Bosnia & Herzegovina 0.00597 1,385
Botswana 0.02386 5,542
Brazil 3.02874 703,184
Bulgaria 0.03381 7,849
Burkina Faso 0.00398 923
Burundi 0.00199 462
Cambodia 0.00398 923
Canada 5.59412 1,298,790
Central African Republic 0.00199 461
Colombia 0.30824 71,565
Comoros 0.00033 7
Congo 0.00199 462
Costa Rica 0.05966 13,851
Croatia 0.07358 17,083
Cyprus 0.07756 18,007
Democratic Republic of the Congo 0.00597 1,385
Denmark 1.42786 331,508
Djibouti 0.00199 462
Dominica 0.00199 462
Dominican Republic 0.06960 16,160
Ecuador 0.03778 8,772
Estonia 0.02386 5,541
Fiji 0.00795 1,847
Finland 1.05996 246,091
France 11.99167 2,784,111
Gabon 0.01790 4,155
Gambia 0.00199 462
Georgia 0.00597 1,385
Germany 17.22584 3,999,332
Ghana 0.00795 1,847
Greece 1.05399 244,706
Guinea 0.00597 1,385
Guyana 0.00199 462
Honduras 0.00994 2,309
Hungary 0.25057 58,175
Iceland 0.06761 15,698
Ireland 0.69603 161,599
Italy 9.71464 2,255,454
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States Parties 2006 scale of assessment Surplus
Jordan 0.02188 5,079
Kenya 0.01790 4,155
Latvia 0.02983 6,926
Lesotho 0.00199 462
Liberia 0.00199 462
Liechtenstein 0.00994 2,309
Lithuania 0.04773 11,081
Luxembourg 0.15313 35,552
Malawi 0.00199 462
Mali 0.00398 923
Malta 0.02784 6,464
Marshall Islands 0.00199 462
Mauritius 0.02188 5,079
Mexico 3.74466 869,400
Mongolia 0.00199 462
Montenegro 0.00116 269
Namibia 0.01193 2,770
Nauru 0.00199 462
Netherlands 3.36085 780,290
New Zealand 0.43950 102,038
Niger 0.00199 462
Nigeria 0.08352 19,392
Norway 1.35031 313,501
Panama 0.03778 8,772
Paraguay 0.02386 5,541
Peru 0.18296 42,477
Poland 0.91678 212,848
Portugal 0.93467 217,004
Republic of Korea 3.57165 829,231
Romania 0.11932 27,703
Saint Kitts and Nevis 0.00033 77
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines 0.00199 462
Samoa 0.00199 462
San Marino 0.00597 1,385
Senegal 0.00994 2,309
Serbia 0.03778 8,772
Sierra Leone 0.00199 462
Slovakia 0.10142 23,547
Slovenia 0.16307 37,860
South Africa 0.58069 134,819
Spain 5.01144 1,163,509
Sweden 1.98469 460,787
Switzerland 2.38044 552,667
Tajikistan 0.00199 462
The Former Yugoslav Rep. of Macedonia 0.01193 @,77
Timor-Leste 0.00199 462
Trinidad and Tobago 0.04375 10,158
Uganda 0.01193 2,770
United Kingdom 12.18457 2,828,898
United Republic of Tanzania 0.01193 2,770
Uruguay 0.09546 22,162
Venezuela 0.34006 78,952
Zambia 0.00398 923
Total (103 States Parties) 100.0000 23,217,052
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Schedule 6
International Criminal Court
Status of voluntary contributions as at 31 Decembe2007
(in eurog
ReCeipts  pefung
Project Contributor Pledges Received  Outstanding future to
: donors
periods
Internship and Visiting Professionals Programme ofean Commission 713,904 506,649 207,255 179,321
MacArthur Foundation 89,706 89,706 - 22,427 -
The Netherlands 28,500 28,500 - - 10,126
Foundation Open Society Institute 62,922 62,922 - 099%™ -
Norway 24,984 24,984 - - 40,849
Switzerland 7,000 7,000 - - 5,380
927,016 719,761 207,255 222,722 56,355
Least Developed Countries Canada 36,454 - - 72,12
Finland - 16,000 - - -
Germany - 20,000 - - -
Greece - 20,000 - - -
Ireland 20,000 - - -
Montenegro - 2,500 - - -
The Netherlands - 40,000 - - -
Switzerland - 19,979 - - -
United Kingdom - 28,679 - - -
- 203,612 - - 2,127
Judicial Capacity Strengthening Programme MacAtrffaundation 48,750 48,750 - - -
48,750 48,750 - - -
ICC Legal Tools Project (Case Matrix) Austria 5,000 5,000 - - -
Finland 95,240 95,240 - - 13,993
100,240 100,240 - - 13,993
Joint Appellate Training Programme Foundation Ofeaiety Institute 7,566 7,566 - - -
7,566 7,566 - - -
Defence Counsel Seminar Finland 52,406 52,406 - - 0,847
52,406 52,406 - - 20,847
Total voluntary contributions 1,135,978 1,132,335 207,255 222,722 93,322
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International Criminal Court
Status of trust funds as at 31 December 2007

Schedule 7

(in euros)
Balances brought Savings on, or
. . o cancellation of,
Trust Fund forward as at Receipts Disbursements Unliquidated Total Interest prior periods’ Refunds to Unencumbered
1 January obligations expenditures Earned obligations donors balances

Internship and Visiting Professionals Programme , 164 719,761 896,189 98,318 994,507 14,484 10,223  56,3%5) (152,279)
ICC Institutional Video 37,601 - - - - 1,209 - - 38,810
Least Developed Countries 41,173 203,612 24,351 3319, 103,682 4,184 4,487 (2,127) 147,647
ICC Legal Tools Project (Case Matrix) 14,976 100,24 85,944 10,441 96,385 1,557 535 (13,993) 6,930
Judicial Capacity Strengthening Programme 28,356 748 36,219 - 36,219 1,655 - - 42,541
Joint Appellate Training Programme 7,742 7,566 93,0 - 15,093 7 - - 221
Defence Counsel Seminar - 52,406 23,317 5,258 28,575 532 - (20,847) 3,617
Total 283,962 1,132,335 1,081,114 193,347 1,274,461 23,628 15,245 (93,322) 87,387
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Notes to the financial statements

1. The International Criminal Court and its objectives
1.1 The International Criminal Court (ICC) is a mp@nent institution with the power to
exercise jurisdiction over perpetrators of the nsestous crimes of international concern (genocide,
crimes against humanity, war crimes and crimesggfession once formally defined). The Court
has four organs: the Presidency, Chambers (camgistian Appeals Division, a Trial Division and
a Pre-Trial Division), the Office of the Prosecutand the Registry. In its resolution ICC-
ASP/2/Res.3, adopted in September 2003, the Asgeshidtates Parties established the Secretariat
of the Assembly of States Parties (the Secretatiatpegin its operations on 1 January 2004. In
undertaking their tasks, the organs of the Cowtgarided by the framework set out in the Rome
Statute, the Rules of Procedure and Evidence, tadl celevant instruments.

The objectives pursued by each organ of the Coaras follows:

a) Presidency

() To ensure the proper administration of the ©€dbrough means of managerial
oversight, coordination and cooperation;

(i) To oversee and support the fair, open andcéffe conduct of proceedings and to
fulfil all exclusive judicial functions assigned tioe Presidency;

(i) To broaden global understanding of and supgor the work of the Court by
representing it in the international arena.

b) Chambers

() To ensure the conduct of fair, effective aneiogroceedings, safeguarding
the rights of all parties.

c) Office of the Prosecutor

(i) To promote national efforts and internationalbperation to prevent and punish
genocide, crimes against humanity and war crimes;

(i) To investigate and prosecute genocide, criagainst humanity and war crimes;
(ii) To build universal consensus on the princgoéd purposes of the Rome Statute.
d) Registry
() To provide efficient, effective and high-qualitudicial and administrative support
services to the Presidency and Chambers, the Qffittlee Prosecutor, the defence,
and victims and witnesses.

e) Secretariat of the Assembly of States Parties

(i) To organise conferences of the Assembly andtimge of the subsidiary bodies of
the Assembly, including the Bureau and the Committe Budget and Finance;

312



ICC-ASP/7/20

(i) To assist the Assembly, including its Bureand asubsidiary bodies in all matters
relating to their work, with particular emphasis the effective scheduling and
procedurally correct conduct of meetings as weti@ssultations;

(iii) To enable the Assembly and its subsidiary ieedo carry out their mandate more
effectively by providing them with high-quality sstntive Secretariat servicing
and support, including technical Secretariat seszic

2. Summary of significant accounting and financiateporting policies

2.1 The accounts of the International Criminal Gare maintained in accordance with the
Financial Regulations and Rules of the Court, asptetl by the Assembly of States Parties at its
first session in September 2002, and amendmentstehd he accounts of the ICC are currently in
conformity with the United Nations system accougtitandards. These notes form an integral part
of the ICC’s financial statements.

2.2 Fund accounting the Organisation’s accounts are maintained amnd ficcounting basis.
Separate funds for general or special purposes lmagstablished by the Assembly of States
Parties. Trust funds and special accounts fundedllwtby voluntary contributions may be
established and closed by the Registrar.

2.3 Financial period: the financial period of the Organisation is orsendar year, unless
otherwise decided by the Assembly of States Parties

2.4 Accrual basis with the exception of voluntary contributions, @afined in subparagraph
2.15 (b) below, income, expenditure, assets ariilitias are recognised on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

2.5 Historical cost basis the accounts are prepared on the historical lwasis of accounting
and are not adjusted to reflect the effects of ghmnprices for goods and services.

2.6 Currency of accounts and treatment of exchange ratmovementsthe accounts of the
Organisation are presented in euros. Accountingrdsckept in other currencies are converted into
euros at the United Nations operational rate ofharge in effect at the date of the financial
statement. Transactions in other currencies aresected into euros at the United Nations
operational rate of exchange in effect at the dateansaction.

Exchange rate gains and losses are treated aw$ollo

a) Realised gains and losses resulting from thehase of other currencies are recorded
as miscellaneous income;

b) Realised losses on transactions are reflectedhén expenditures of the main
programme;

¢) Unrealised gains and losses resulting from évaluation of cash and other assets and
liabilities are recorded as a provision in the batasheet. At year-end, a cumulative net
gain is left as a provision in the balance shedter@as a net loss is specifically
provided for and recorded as expenditure;

d) Unrealised gains and losses relating to thelwatian of unliquidated obligations are
recorded as expenditure and adjusted in the camelspg programme budgets.
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2.7 The General Fundwas established for the purpose of accountinghferexpenditures of
the Court. The General Fund includes assessedilmaiuns, funds provided by the United
Nations, voluntary contributions, miscellaneousome and advances made from the Working
Capital Fund to finance expenditures.

2.8 The Working Capital Fund is the fund established to ensure capital forGbart to meet
short-term liquidity problems pending receipt a@ssed contributions. The amount of the Working
Capital Fund is determined by the Assembly of St®arties for each financial period and is
assessed in accordance with the scale of assessosatt for the appropriations of the Court, in
accordance with financial regulation 6.2.

2.9 Trust Funds and special accountare established and closed by the Registrar, end a
reported to the Presidency and, through the Comenith Budget and Finance, to the Assembly of
States Parties. They are funded wholly by voluntanytributions in accordance with specific terms
and agreements with the donors.

Reserve accounts and special accotuntsled wholly or in part by assessed contributions
may be established by the Assembly of States Bartie

2.10 The Contingency Fundin the maximum amount of €10,000,000 was estaduidby the
Assembly of States Parties in September 2004 teffleetive 1 January 2005, to ensure that the
Court can meet:

a) Costs associated with an unforeseen situatitowiog a decision by the  Prosecutor
to open an investigation; or

b) Unavoidable expenses for developments in exjs8ituations that could not be
foreseen or could not be accurately estimatededtittie of adoption of the budget; or

c) Costs associated with an unforeseen meetirfgeoAssembly of States Parties.

The level of the Contingency Fund is determinedhsy Assembly of States Parties and is
financed by assessed contributions or by applyasi surpluses, as determined by the Assembly of
States Parties.

2.11 Assessed contributions:

a) In accordance with financial regulation 5.2, Hppropriations are assessed to States
Parties in accordance with the scale of assessradnfsted by the United Nations for
its regular budget, adjusted to reflect differencesnembership between the United
Nations and the Court;

b) In accordance with financial regulation 5.8, mpapnts made by a State Party are
credited first to the Working Capital Fund and thenthe contributions due to the
General Fund, and then to the Contingency Funthérorder in which the State Party
was assessed;

c) Contributions paid in other currencies are cor@kinto euros at the rate of exchange
in effect at the date of payment;

d) New States Parties to the Rome Statute are assessbd year in which they became
States Parties for the Working Capital Fund anddigellar budget, in accordance with
financial regulation 5.10.
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2.12 Surpluses due to States Partieg®r a given financial period are funds arisingnfito
a) Unencumbered balances of appropriations;
b) Savings on, or cancellation of, prior periodsfligations;
c) Contributions resulting from the assessmentesf States Parties;
d) Reuvisions to the scale of assessments takiegtaffiring the financial year; and
e) Miscellaneous income as defined in subparag?alih (d) below.

Unless otherwise determined by the Assembly ofeStBarties, surpluses at the end of the
financial period, after deducting there from angessed contributions for that financial period
which remain unpaid, are apportioned to the St&asgies based on the scale of assessments
applicable for the financial period to which theus relates. As of 1 January following the year i
which the audit of the accounts of the financiatige is completed, the amount of surplus
apportioned to a State Party is surrendered datgribution for that financial period has beendpai
in full. In such cases, the credit is used to dffé® whole or in part, contributions due to the
Working Capital Fund and assessed contributionsfauthe calendar year following the financial
period to which the surplus relates.

2.13 Reserve for unpaid assessed contributionsa reserve in the amount of assessed
contributions remaining unpaid for prior financigériods is shown on the balance sheet as a
deduction from the cumulative surplus.

2.14 Contributions received in advance:contributions received in advance are shown on the
balance sheet as a liability. Contributions reagiveadvance are applied in the following financial
period, first against any advances due to the WigriGapital Fund and second, to the assessed
contributions.

2.15 Income: the organisation’s income consists of:

a) Assessed contributions: for the purposes of fthancial statements, income is
recognised when the assessments to the StatessR#rthe adopted programme budget
have been approved by the Assembly of States Bartie

b) Voluntary contributions are recorded as incomeh® basis of a written commitment to
pay monetary contributions during the current ficiah year, except where
contributions are not preceded by a pledge. Fesdhlunds, income is recorded at the
time that the actual contributions are receivedifthe donors;

¢) Funds provided by the United Nations in accocganith article 115, subparagraph (b),
of the Rome Statute;

d) Miscellaneous income includes:
() Refunds of actual expenditures incurred in ipfilancial periods;

(i) Interest income: includes all interest earrmeddeposits in interest-bearing bank
accounts and time deposits;

(iif) Income derived from investments of the Gehénand, the Working Capital Fund
and the Contingency Fund;
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(iv) At the end of the financial period, a net pivs balance of the account for loss or
gain on exchange resulting from currency exchange, revaluation and
devaluation of currency is credited to miscellareednicome. A net negative
balance is charged to the relevant expenditureuaatco

(v) Proceeds from the sale of property;
(vi) Voluntary contributions for which no purposedpecified.

2.16 Expenditure:

a) Expenditures are incurred against authorisemtnadints in accordance with financial
rule 104.1. Total expenditures reported includebulisement expenditures and
unliquidated obligations;

b) Expenditures incurred for non-expendable prgpare charged to the budget of the
period when acquired and are not capitalised. lorgnof such non-expendable
property is maintained at the historical cost;

c) Obligations pertaining to future financial petsoare recorded against a deferred charge
account, in accordance with financial rule 111.7.

2.17 Unliquidated obligations are commitments entered into that have not beshudsed
during the financial period. Obligations are baseda formal contract, agreement, purchase order
or other form of undertaking, or on a liability cgmised by the Court. Current period obligations
remain valid for 12 months after the end of thaficial year to which they relate.

2.18 Provision for pension liabilities for judges: a provision for the accrued amount of
liabilities for the pension scheme of judges iogrtsed in the accounts and is shown in the income
statement as expenditure.

2.19 Cash and term depositscomprise funds held in interest-bearing bank actxutime
deposits and call accounts.

2.20 Deferred chargescomprise

a) Obligations established prior to the financiatipd to which they pertain, which are
recorded as deferred charges to be charged agamstelevant appropriations and
funds when they become available;

b) Expenditure items that are not properly charlgeabthe current financial period and
that will be charged as expenditure in a subsedueanicial period;

c) That portion of the education grant advance Wwhie assumed to pertain to the
scholastic year completed at the date of the filsdustatement is reported as deferred
charges for the purposes of the balance sheetr&ateonly. The full amount of the
advance is maintained in the accounts receivabktadf members and officials of the
Court until the required evidence of entitlementpioduced, at which time the
budgetary account is charged and the advancedsettle

2.21 Deferred income includes pledged contributions for future finahgi@riods and other
income received but not yet earned.

2.22 Commitments of the Court relating to prior and current finacperiods are shown as
unliquidated obligations. Current period obligasaemain valid for 12 months following the end
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of the financial period to which they relate. Cortments against future financial periods are
recorded as deferred charges.

2.23 Repatriation grant liability: internationally recruited staff members who sepmalscome
entitled to repatriation grants after one yearestige. Similarly, judges become entitled to reeeiv
a relocation allowance after five years of servigegn termination of duty.

In prior years, the Court’s repatriation grant i@ has been estimated by accruing the
repatriation grant of eaabntitled employee as at 31 December. In 2007, the Courh&sd the
liability by accruing the amount of repatriatioragt that eacleligible employee hagarnedas at
31 December.

This method of estimating the liability is more gemt and in line with current best practice
for employee benefits (IPSAS 25/IAS 19), where thwderlying principle is that the cost of
providing employee benefits should be recognisethénperiod in which the benefit is earned by
the employee, rather than when it is paid or paabl

The amount that would have been recorded in priar'g accounts as per the new
methodology and a comparison thereof with curresriopl accounts is shown in note 4.16 (b)
below. Changing the prior year comparatives wouivehrequired a correction in prior year
accounts, but is not required in this case asri@uat is not material.

2.24  Contingent liabilities, if any, are disclosed in the notes to the findrst@ements.

2.25 United Nations Joint Staff Pension Fund (UNJSPF)in accordance with decision ICC-
ASP/1/Decision 3 of the Assembly of States Paraesl United Nations General Assembly
resolution 58/262 adopted on 23 December 2003|Gkkebecame a member organisation of the
UNJSPF with effect from 1 January 2004. The UNJBRIvides retirement, death, disability and
related benefits to ICC staff.

The Pension Fund is a funded defined benefit plEme financial obligation of the
organisation to the Fund consists of its mandatedribution at the rate established by the United
Nations General Assembly of 15.8 per cent of peraddte remuneration, together with any share of
any actuarial deficiency payments under Articleo2éhe Regulations of the Fund. Such deficiency
payments are only payable if and when the UnitetoNa General Assembly has invoked the
provision of article 26, following determinationatithere is a requirement for deficiency payments
based on an assessment of the actuarial sufficentye Fund as of the valuation date.

At the time of this report, the United Nations GexheAssembly has not invoked this
provision.

3. The International Criminal Court (statements I-1V)

3.1 The International Criminal Court was establisbg the Rome Statute of the International
Criminal Court on 17 July 1998, when 120 Statesigpating in the "United Nations Diplomatic
Conference of Plenipotentiaries on the Establishmé&mn International Criminal Court" adopted
the Statute. The Court is an independent permguoditial institution composed of the following
organs:

a) The Presidency, comprising the President ané&itseand Second Vice-Presidents;
b) The Chambers, comprising an Appeals Division[real Division and a Pre-Trial

Division. The Appeals Division is composed of thregident and four other judges; the
Trial Division is composed of not less than sixgad, as is the Pre-Trial Division;
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¢) The Office of the Prosecutor, which acts indelegnly as a separate organ of the Court,
Is responsible for the investigation and prosecutibcrimes within the jurisdiction of
the Court;

d) The Registry, which is responsible for:
()  Non-judicial support and administrative sengder the Court;
(i) The provision of judicial support for courtrs&es;
(i) Management of the internal security of theutto

(iv) The implementation of mechanisms to assist aafeguard the rights of
victims, witnesses and defence;

e) The Secretariat, which provides the Assembly arsd Bureau, the Credentials
Committee, the Committee on Budget and FinanceSfeial Group on the Crime of
Aggression, as well as, upon explicit decision by Assembly, any subsidiary body
that may be established by the Assembly, with iedepnt substantive servicing as
well as administrative and technical assistance.

The seat of the Court has been established at BlgedHin the Netherlands in accordance
with article 3 of the Rome Statute. The Court has astablished five field offices to enable it to
conduct its field operations. These field offices aperational in Uganda, Democratic Republic of
the Congo, Chad and Central African Republic.

For the purposes of the 2007 financial period, dppropriations were divided into five
major programmes: the Judiciary (Presidency andness), the Office of the Prosecutor, the
Registry, the Secretariat of the Assembly of StBtmsies and Investment in the Court’s Premises.

3.2 The financial period of the organisation is @atendar year unless otherwise decided by
the Assembly of States Parties.

3.3 Statement | reports the income and expenditure and changesserve and fund balances
during the financial period. It includes the caltidn of the excess of income over expenditure for
the current period and prior period adjustment®i@dme or expenditure.

3.4 Statement |l shows the assets, liabilities, reserves and fualdnibes as at 31 December
2007. The value of non-expendable property is eedurom the assets (see note 2.16(b)).

35 Statement Ill is the cash flow summary statement prepared ubkiegndirect method of
International Accounting Standard 7.

3.6 Statement |V reports on expenditures against the appropriajmproved for the financial
period.

4. General Fund, Working Capital Fund and Contingerty Fund

4.1 Assessed contributionsthe Assembly of States Parties, in its resolut@8-4ASP/5/Res.4,
approved the funding of the appropriations of treur€ for the financial period 1 January to 31
December 2007 in the total amount of €88,871,8G0atA31 December 2007, there were 105 States
Parties to the Rome Statute.

4.2 Interest income: interest in the amount of €3,103,873 represeantyast earned on the

Court’s bank accounts for the General Fund, thekiigrCapital Fund and the Contingency Fund.

318



ICC-ASP/7/20

4.3 Miscellaneous income:the total miscellaneous income of €204,478 remtssehe
following:

Table 1: Details of miscellaneous income

Miscellaneous income Amount (euros)
Refund of expenditures incurred in prior financiatipds 93,718
Miscellaneous income 110,760
Total 204,478

4.4 Expenditures: the total amount of expenditures, €77,463,583, mwmes total
disbursements of €63,052,531, outstanding obligataf €10,913,607 and provisions for liabilities
of €3,497,445. The expenditures are detailed itetalbelow.

Table 2: Details of expenditures (in euros)

Category of expenditure Appropriation Disbur.sed Unli(_quid.ated Brovisionsd) TOté.’d
amount expenditures obligations expenditures

Salaries & other staff costs 62,195,000 49,774,524 1,187,387 3,462,066 54,423,977
Travel & hospitality 4,106,200 2,551,962 1,109,106 - 3,661,068
Contractual services 7,539,100 3,428,142 2,315,250 5,379 5,778,771
Operating expenses 11,308,400 5,099,689 3,983,690 - 9,083,379
Acquisitions 3,723,100 2,198,214 2,318,174 - 4,588,
Total 88,871,800 63,052,531 10,913,607 3,497,445 463,583

a) The amount of €3,497,445 is recorded in the @asoas a provision for pension of
judges and a provision for ILO cases as statedtes¥.5 and 4.6 below.

4.5 Provision for pension liabilities: in its resolution ICC-ASP/4/Res.9, the Assembly of
States Parties decided that the pension schenme glidges should be accounted for and funded on
an accrual basis. As at 31 December 2006, the &€ rbcorded in its accounts the actuarial
estimated costs of the accrual for the period fidimnMarch 2003 to 31 December 2006 in the
amount of €6,291,289. In 2007, the ICC recordeceienated actuarial costs of the accrual for the
period 1 January to 31 December 2007 in the tatabumt of €2,475,710, resulting in a total
provision for the pension of the judges of €8,766,9

In addition to the provision for the pension of ged, the Court recorded in its accounts in
2007 the liability for the disability premium ofjadge who had been declared by the Court not able
to perform his duties due to ill-health and wastkeat to disability pension effective August 2007.
The additional premium for the disability pensiataunted for in 2007 was €948,024, resulting in
a total provision for pension of judges of €9,7230

Due to the complexity of the pension scheme, the #d Allianz were not able to finalise
the contract in 2007 as stated in the prior yefinancial statements. The new estimated time for
the completion of the contract is July 2008, atcalhtime the accrued amount as well as the
premium for 2008 will be paid to Allianz.

4.6 Provision for ILO cases: during 2007, a complaint against the ICC has h@erented to
the ILOAT by a former staff member. The decision egpected in 2008. Considering the
jurisprudence of the Tribunal and its favourablspdsition to staff complaints, it is probable that
the Tribunal will rule in favour of the complainanin which case the Tribunal will award damages
and costs to staff if their claims are succesdBalsed on previous awards in similar cases, the
amount estimated for damages and costs which hexrs fleeorded as a provision is €38,332. The
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Court also recorded as a provision the amount wiirsidtrative costs of the Tribunal for 2007 in the
amount of €35,379, resulting in a total provisioniLO cases of €73,711.

In 2006, the ICC reported a provision of €126,088damages and costs regarding three
cases against it presented by (former) staff mesnioérthe ICC to the International Labour
Organization Administrative Tribunal (ILOAT). In R@, the ILOAT decided upon the cases and a
total amount of €22,232 has been paid to the camgoiés from the provision. The remaining
amount of €103,847 has been credited to miscellsEmome.

4.7 Savings on, or cancellation of, prior periods’ obljations: actual disbursements of prior
periods’ obligations of €11,721,338 amounted tc/88,703 due to savings on or cancellation of
obligations in the amount of €2,932,635.

4.8 Credits to States Parties: cash surplus credited to eligible States Padi@sunted to
€6,325,532. This comprises cash surpluses from 28@5ad been apportioned to States Parties in
accordance with their respective assessments dofittancial period. The sum of €487,587 of this
cash surplus had been returned to States Partieghanremaining amount of €5,837,495 was
credited towards assessed contributions due andligled in the total amount of collections during
2007 (Schedule 1).

4.9 Working Capital Fund: the Assembly of States Parties, in its resolut©@8-JASP/5/Res.4,
established the Working Capital Fund for the finahgeriod 1 January to 31 December 2007 in the
amount of €7,405,983 resulting in a net increasg’76%,583 from the previous financial period.

410 Assessed contributions receivable: the outstanding balance of contributions of
€8,148,534 comprises €2,297,592 due for prior fir@nperiods and €5,850,942 due for 2007
(Schedule 1). Contributions received from Statedid®ain excess of contributions due in the
amount of €9,077,165 are reported as contributieosived in advance (see note 4.15(b) below).

4.11 Other contributions receivable refer to the outstanding balance due to the Wgrkin
Capital Fund. The outstanding balance as at 31leee2007 was €19,354 (Schedules 2 and 3).

4.12 Interfund balances receivableto the General Fund as at 31 December 2007 amount t
€25,644, comprising €21,644 from the trust fundd €4,000 from the Trust Fund for Victims for
which there are separate accounts.

4.13 Other accounts receivablan the total amount of €4,426,233 are detailethbie 3 below.

Table 3: Details of other accounts receivable

Accounts receivable Amount (euros)
Governments (value-added t&) 702,837
Staff 760,278
Vendors 147,391
Interest accrued 1,495,976
Travel advances (other than cash advaridkes) 538,467
Advances to vendors for travel-related expeffies 714,319
Others 66,965
Total 4,426,233

a) Value-added tax: the amount of €702,837 recorded in the accountseesivable
from government for value-added tax (VAT) paid armods and services includes an
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amount of €108,447 representing VAT for purchaseddganda during 2005, 2006 and
2007. This amount is a receivable from the Ugan@overnment pending the
completion of the agreement between the ICC andJtendan Government on VAT
refund. It is not certain whether the amount of &4@7 will be recoverable, as it may
be that the agreement will only be effective frdma tate it is signed by both parties.

b) Travel advances (other than cash advancesyepresents the amount of travel
advances for which the travellers had not submitiedel expense claims to be
recorded in the accounts as expenditure in 200is. i§ithe amount of travel advances
with the exception of those paid in the form oflta€ash advances are recorded as
receivables from the travellers and are includeaha total amounts for “Staff”,
“Vendors”, or “Others” receivables.

c) Advances to vendors for travel-related expensesepresents the amounts paid to
vendors for travel-related expenses such as tickedsshipments for which the travel
claims had not been submitted by the travellerbeaecorded as expenditure in the
accounts as at 31 December 2007.

4.14 Education grant advances:deferred charges contain the amount of €329,498wikithe
portion of the education grant advance that israssuto pertain to the scholastic years completed
as at 31 December 2007.

4.15 Contributions or payments received in advancea total of €9,160,931 was received from
States Parties to be applied to the next finapadabd. This comprises:

a) €83,766 received from States Parties in advdoce2008 assessed contributions
(Schedule 1);

b) €9,077,165 representing contributions receivedxcess of assessed contributions for
2007 resulting from assessment of new States Baoverpayments or the distribution
of 2005 cash surplus (Schedule 1).
4.16 Other accounts payabldan the total amount of €3,516,579 aketailed in table 4 below.

Table 4: Details of other accounts payable

Accounts payable Amount (euros)
Staff 193,456
Vendors 433,713
Deferred payment from Special Court for Sierra Lene 334,069
Repatriation grant liabilit) 2,464,567
Others 90,774
Total 3,516,579

a) Deferred payment from the Special Court for SierraLeone: on 29 March 2006, the
ICC received a request from the President of thectap Court for Sierra Leone
(Special Court) to provide temporary assistanceh wiggard to the provision of
courtroom and detention services and facilities suygport for the conduct of the trial
of Charles Taylor. After consultations with the Bau of the Assembly of States
Parties, the ICC agreed to provide the services faaiities on condition that full
payment in advance would be made before servicesremdered. Based on this
decision, the ICC and the Special Court signed anbtandum of Understanding
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(MOU) on 13 April 2006 regarding the administrati@@angements between the two
Courts.

Following this agreement, the Special Court madeaade payments to the ICC to
cover its expenditures. The amount of €334,068adalance of the advance payments
received from the Special Court less the experhtimcurred by the Special Court as
at 31 December 2007.

b) Repatriation grant liability: the amount of €2,464,567 is the liability of the
organisation for repatriation grants and relocastbowances accrued as at 31
December 2007.

In 2006, the ICC recorded in its accounts and tepan its financial statements a total
amount of €1,207,032 being the accrued liability fepatriation grants as at 31
December 2006. As per note 2.23 above, the Coantgdd its accounting policy in
2007 to estimate the accrued liability for repaioia grants of staff and relocation
allowances of judges. The amount of €624,632 (€6 r repatriation grants and
€548,383 for relocation allowances) is the amohat tvould have been charged to
prior years as per the new methodology. Howeveg,tduhe fact that the amount is not
material, the prior year accounts were not restated the amount of €624,632 in
addition to the 2007 portion for the accrual of 6883 have been fully expensed in
2007. The table below shows the 2007 and 2006 catipa figures if the accounts
were to be restated using the new methodology.

Table 5: Comparatives for repatriation grant liaityl (in euros)

Accourt 2000 ilchent  (estasd)  rediated)
Adjustments to income statement (Statement |)
Disbursed expenditures 52,831,394 624,632 563026 61,427,899
Fund balance as at 31 December 44,777,506 (&32) 44,152,874 56,805,760
Adjustments to balance sheet (Statement 11)
Other accounts payable 2,081,337 624,632 2605 2,891,947
Total liabilities 27,963,889 624,632 28,588,521 3857220
Cumulative surplus 23,829,940 (624,632) 23,208 37,308,986
Total reserves and fund balances 44,777,506 (624,532 44,152,874 56,805,760
Total liabilities, reservesand fund  balances 72,741,395 624,632 73,366,027 90,185,612

4.17 Contingency Fund:the amount of €9,168,567 representing the cagiiusufor 2002-2003
financial period had been credited to establish@batingency Fund in accordance with resolution
ICC-ASP/ICC/Res.4 (b). The fund had not been us&tDD7.

4.18 Reserve for unpaid assessed contributiongn amount of €2,297,592, being the amount
of outstanding assessed contributions for pricarfoial periods (Schedule 1), is deducted from the
cumulative surplus to derive the cash surplus @@62for distribution to States Parties (Schedule 4)

5. Trust Funds

5.1 Voluntary contributions: contributions in the amount of €1,339,591 have bgledged
and/or received for 2007 projects.
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5.2 Interest income: interest in the amount of €23,628 representsastararned on the Court’s
bank account for the Trust Funds.

5.3 Refund to donors: the amount of €93,322 was refunded to donors, b#iagamount in
excess of the requirements of the specific projeaispleted (Schedules 6 and 7).

5.4 Other accounts receivable:ithe amount of €7,488 is the interest earned butecived
with regard to the bank account of the Trust Funds.

5.5 Contributions or payments received in advance:the ICC received voluntary
contributions in the total amount of €222,722 faojects starting after 31 December 2007
(Schedule 6).

5.6 Interfund balances payable:as at 31 December 2007, interfund balances between
Trust Fund and the General Fund amounted to a pmghlE21,644.

6. Non-expendable property

6.1 A summary of non-expendable property, at hisabrcost, as at 31 December 2007 is
provided in table 6 below. In accordance with therent ICC accounting policies, non-expendable
property is not included in the fixed assets ofdhganisation, but is directly charged to the badge

upon acquisition.

Table 6: Summary of non-expendable property (ilogur

. Closing

Opening Acquisitions/ Written-  balance as at

Asset management category balance as at ) . ol
adjustments off items* 31 December
1 January 2007
2007

Information, technology and 4,885,118 1,069,249  (33,766) 5,920,601
communications equipment
Security and safety equipment 736,694 69,947 (3,788 801,853
General services equipment 837,896 88,810 (1,639) 25,087
Vehicles and transportation equipment 777,412 - - 77,412
Office of the Prosecutor equipment 1,245,707 59,893(13,375) 1,292,225
Other equipment 158,087 489,106 - 647,193
Total 8,640,914 1,777,005 (53,568) 10,364,351

a) During 2007, items valued at a total amount5#,868 had been written off.

In addition to the above, the ICC’s records incltitke following non-expendable property
acquired from voluntary contributions:

Table 7: Summary of hon-expendable property futgeather sources (in euros)

Opening balance " Closing
Acquisitions/ balance as at

Asset management category as at :

1 January 2007 adjustments 31 December

2007

Advance team budget 18,276 - 18,276
Host State contributions 148,960 - 148,960
Other donations 270,597 - 270,597
Total 437,833 - 437,833
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7. Write-off losses of cash, receivables and propgr

7.1 In addition to the items written off during 20@s stated in 6.1 above, a total amount of
€5,549 had been written off as loss of cash.

8. Ex-gratia payments

8.1 Noex-gratiapayments were made by the Court during the firsmpariod.

9. Gratis personnel

9.1 No services of gratis personnel were receiwgihd the financial period.

10. Contingent liabilities

10.1  Liabilities for end-of-service payments toffsées at 31 December 2007 in the total amount
of €2,806,950 are the estimated costs of compamsdtir accrued annual leave for ICC staff

members and elected officials. During 2007, the '#CBuman Resources Section devolved the
responsibility of maintenance of annual leave tadseof sections. At the time of this report, not al

leave balances were available for the estimatiolimbilities. An estimated cost was calculated for
each of those staff based on the average annuad lealance of all staff, and was added to the
estimate of accrued annual leave resulting indgted estimated liability of €2,806,950.

10.2 In 2006, a dispute arose between the ICC hedandlord of the ICC premises in the
Kampala field office, in which the landlord is af@ing from the ICC approximately €500,000 for
alleged breach of contract and interest on delgggthents of invoices. In accordance with the ICC
Terms of Contract, the parties have decided ta e matter to arbitration. Although the claim
from the landlord is highly inflated and unreasdealhe ICC believes that the arbitration will
determine some amounts to be due and payable.rigetidi outcome of the arbitration, at this stage
it is very difficult to provide a reliable estimabé the amount which may be due. The ICC will also
have to bear its own costs of the arbitration.

11. Service-incurred injury

11.1 The ICC entered into an agreement with anramae company to offer coverage for
service-incurred injuries for ICC staff, judgesnsaltants and temporary assistants. The insurance
premium, calculated as a percentage of the perld®mmamuneration for the staff members and a
comparable percentage for judges, consultants antpdrary assistants, is charged to the
organisation’s budget and is reflected in the antounder expenditures. The total premium paid
during 2007 for this insurance was €579,159.

12. Contributions in kind (unaudited)

12.1  The following are the significant (higher th&®5,000) contributions in kind received by
the Court during the financial period:

a) As reported in the financial statements forgter financial periods, the Court
continues to receive the following contributionsrfrthe host State:
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(i) Premises to the Court free of rent for a pendd0 years, starting 1 July 2002;

(i) Costs associated with the interim premisestt® Court to a maximum of €33
million, including the costs of building a courtrao

13. Contributions to the Trust Fund for Victims

13.1 In its resolution ICC-ASP/1/Res.6, the Assgmiifl States Parties established the Trust
Fund for Victims for the benefit of victims of crem within the jurisdiction of the ICC, and the
families of such victims.

In the annex to that resolution, the Assembly distadd a Board of Directors, which is
responsible for the management of the Trust Fund, decided that the Registrar of the Court
should be responsible for providing such assistasae necessary for the proper functioning of the
Board in carrying out its tasks and should partitépin the meetings of the Board in an advisory
capacity.

In 2007, the Assembly approved an appropriationitsnregular budget to fund the
Secretariat of the Trust Fund for Victims, undee Registry, in the amount of €718,400. The
Secretariat administers the Trust Fund and off@mimistrative support to the Board and its
meetings. Expenditures recorded in the accountth®iSecretariat during the financial period are
€696,279.
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Letter of transmittal

30 March 2008

In accordance with Financial Regulation 11.1, | eéhdlkie honour to submit the
financial statements of the Trust Fund for Victifos the financial period 1 January to 31
December 2007.

(Signed) Silvana Arbia
Registrar

Mr. TJ Burr

Comptroller and Auditor General
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
Victoria

London SW1W 9SP

United Kingdom
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Executive Summary

. The overall results of the audit — an unqualifieditopinion.
. Financial results, noting a significant declinghe level of voluntary contributions.

. The need to ensure appropriate administrative geraents to account for donations
made for specific purposes.

. Administrative, reputational and fraud risks amgginom the introduction of a on-line
donations system.

. Risks involved with over reliance on general terappassistants.
. Progress on prior year recommendations.

Overall results of the Audit

1. We have audited the financial statements of thetTiFund for Victims in accordance with
the Financial Regulations and in conformity witbelmational Standards on Auditing issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards &oar

2. The audit examination revealed no weaknesses arsashich we considered to be material

to the accuracy, completeness and validity of tinanicial statements; and the audit opinion
confirms that these financial statements presérty fin all material respects, the financial pasit

as at 31 December 2007 and the results of opesasind cash flows for the period then ended, in
accordance with United Nations System Accountingn&ards and the Trust Fund for Victims

stated accounting policies.

3. The main observations and recommendations fronaodit are summarised below, with a
more detailed commentary in the section on Detdiledlings. Action taken by management in
response to our previous year's recommendatiom2d06, is set out aknnex A; and the scope
and approach of the audit, which were communiceddte Registrar in a detailed audit strategy, is
summarised aAnnex B.

Main findings and recommendations
Financial Results

4. The Fund received voluntary contributions of €588, 2007 compared to €1.1 million in
2006. This was attributed to the Secretariat’s $omo undertaking operation rather than fundraising
activities in the y ear, and that the Fund'’s retijotes prevented the donation of funds for a specifi
use. The overall cash balance continues to risecasne exceeded expenditure; and, as a result of
the significantly higher cash balances held, irtenecome increased to €103,599. The Fund made
disbursements to two projects in the period whiwtrdased total expenditure from €5,821 in 2006
to €81,180. Although a significant increase, progativity was only initiated in the latter half of
2007 and total expenditure remains relatively lolwew compared to income or current fund
balances.

Voluntary Contributions for Specific Purposes

5. We note that in December 2007 the Assembly of StRtaties approved a change to the
Trust Fund for Victim's regulations allowing donote specify the use of their voluntary
contribution. In view of this significant change wacourage the Secretariat to ensure that such
voluntary contributions are recorded and accoufdgedn a donor by donor basis, so that financial
information on the funds received and the use e$¢hfunds can be obtained to provide reports to
donors. This will provide necessary transparenay accountability to donors who may require
such reports.
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On-Line Donations

6. We also note the Fund’s intention to introduce anlime donation facility. We have
identified a number of risks involved with the mdiuction of such a facility including the additibna
administrative burden and the impact on the limitesources of the Fund, the risk of receiving
donations from inappropriate sources and the pitiggibf this facility being used for money
laundering where donations are made in error aad tequested to be repaid. We welcome the
Fund’s initiative to make arrangements to vet sdmhations.

Use of General Temporary Assistants (GTAS)

7. Our review of the staffing structure of the Fundwh that the Fund has only two
permanent members of staff and that 70 percenvstpare filled by GTAs. We have identified the
risks involved with a disproportionate reliance temporary staff. These risks include high staff
turnover, reduced commitment to the Fund’s objestiwhere staff are expected to be in post for a
short period of time and the loss of institutiokabwledge at short notice in an organization where
such staff fill key posts. While noting that temaiyr staff have been recruited through a
competitive process and therefore could be madmaent, we encourage the Fund to work to
mitigate the risks identified.

Progress on Previous Audit Recommendations

8. In our 2006 report we made recommendations on aticmu structure, administrative
resource and foreign currency management. We ass@tl to note that the Fund’'s Secretariat are
making progress to address these recommendatiomsvill\continue to monitor their progress in
implementing our recommendations.
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Detailed report findings

Financial results

9. The incoming resources of the Fund decreased suiadip during 2007, with voluntary
contributions decreasing from €1,135,667 in 2006€58,584 in 2007. However, due to the
significant year on year increases in the overaidfbalance, income from interest has increased
from €37,201 to €103,599 in the period. Total exjieire rose substantially from €5,821 in 2006
to €81,180. This was mainly due to the fact that Blund began disbursements for projects in the
year. The remaining expenditure comprised bankgesaand audit fees for 2007.

10. The overall Fund balance increased from €2,450i7@®06 to €3,051,711. This increase
was directly attributable to voluntary contributsoneceived in year remaining in excess of the
expenditure incurred.

Voluntary Contributions for Specific Use

11. There was a significant decrease in the level aintary income received in the period. We
investigated this decline in contributions and kieg factors with the Fund’'s Secretariat. The main
reasons for the decline are that:

. in 2007 the Fund focussed on undertaking operdti@aivities rather than
fundraising and

. until the end of 2007, the Regulations of the Traghd for Victims did not permit
donors to earmark their donation for a particulastivdy or use. (ICC-
ASP/4/Res.3/Paragraph 27)

12. It had become clear that the inability to desigrfatels for specific purposes is a point of
contention for some State Parties and other orgtairs whose regulations or policies prohibit
open-ended donations. Without the ability to st@peila specific use for the donation, such donors
may be reluctant or unable to pledge funds.

13. However in November 2007, the Secretariat of thedFproposed a change to the
regulations and this was endorsed by the Fund’'sdBdéhe Assembly of States Parties approved
this amendment in December 2007 and initial feeklligen the Secretariat is that this change has
improved income generation in 2008.

14. While we see this as an important and appropriaéage to the regulations, the Fund now
needs to ensure that their accounting structurenwamitor all funding nominated for a particular
use and ensure that this can be separately idzhtifhe Secretariat should be able to segregale, an
report on all income and expenditure relating talanation for a specific purpose, as this
information will now be of particular interest tombrs.

15. In previous years we have recommended improvememtshe accounting system’s
functionality to improve reporting transparency;t with the advent of donations for specific
purposes, it is essential that the Secretariateampht an adequate monitoring system to manage
and report on these donations.

Recommendation 1:
We recommend that the Secretariat ensure that thexm appropriate system in place to
identify, monitor and report on all income and exgiéure relating to donations for specific

purposes. This will enable the Secretariat to mle\daccurate reports to donors on the use of these
funds, and provide transparency and accountalfditjunds provided for specific purposes.
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On-Line Donations

16. During our audit it was noted that the Secretgslahs to introduce an on line donations
facility on the Fund’s website, when this has baepgraded. While we understand the rationale for
such a decision, there are some key risks thatidtmuconsidered in the introduction of any such
facility:

. Secretariat may not have sufficient administrate@ources to manage a high volume
of donations that such a facility may elicit foetbrganization;

. There is a risk that donations could be receivethfinappropriate sources; and

. There is a risk that the facility could be operatiuse by money launderers making
donations in error and requesting refunds.

17. It is important to recognise the level of reputatibdamage that could occur from the
failure to correctly manage and vet the potentialiyh level of incoming donations; that an on-line
system could generate.

18. Initial plans to use an intermediate vetting ageaog use a transit account for holding all
funds prior to vetting will provide good mitigati@gainst inappropriate donations; but this does not
address the potential increase in work requiretidoage this new income stream. In addition, it is
unlikely that all donations will be vetted as a getermined threshold will be set for vetting
purposes.

Recommendation 2:

We recommend that the Secretariat ensure thasialaquate administrative resources in
place to effectively manage the introduction obarine donation facility prior to its introduction

We also recommend careful consideration of thelletewhich the donation vetting
threshold is set. This should be low enough to igewadequate protection to the Fund to vet
significant donations, but high enough to prevdmt tost of vetting becoming prohibitively
expensive and materially reducing the value of dona being made online.

General Temporary Assistants (GTAS)

19. During the audit we looked at the level of utilisatof temporary staff at the Fund. At the
time of our review there were two established p@sis Director and his assistant) and five general
temporary assistant (GTA) posts. As the Fund Ikeftiectively in its infancy, we understand the
need for staffing flexibility but having over 70peent of staff on temporary contracts may give
rise to some risks to the organization:

. Temporary staff may be more likely than permaneaff $o leave for a permanent
position elsewhere;

. Temporary staff may be less committed in their ratel to the objectives of the
Fund; and

. Higher turnover of key staff on temporary contraatfl give rise to the loss of
essential knowledge of the Fund’s operations.

20. It is important to note that the final point is pdrticular importance to the Fund due to its

small size. Under the current arrangements, termpataff hold key positions and their knowledge
may not be replicated elsewhere in the organisation
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Recommendation 3:

We recommend that the Secretariat endeavour toesestablished posts for key roles with
the Secretariat to reduce the risk of high turnaekey staff. The Secretariat should ensure that
administrative procedures are documented in a edahbin as this will ensure that key information
is not lost through temporary staff turnover.

Follow up to Prior Year Audit Recommendations

21. In our 2006 report we made recommendations relatinge SAP account coding structure,

administrative support requirements and foreigmengy management. We have followed up on
these recommendations and the Secretariat’'s resgonsur recommendations are summarized in
the report at Annex A. We will continue to monittreir progress on improvements to the

accounting structure and the management of foreigrency disbursements for recently initiated

projects.

Acknowledgement

22. We are grateful for the assistance and co-operaticgived from the International Criminal
Court’s Trust Fund for Victims and, in particulfnom the Registrar and his staff during the course
of our audit.

(Signed) Mr. TJ Burr
Comptroller and Auditor General, United Kingdom
External Auditor
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Annex A

Follow up of Prior Year Recommendations

Rec Recommendation Action Plan Expected Audit Comment
completion date

1 We recommend that the Fund consideit is the intention of the Fund to view the SAP Ongoing We will continue tg
improving the coding structure for itscoding structure utilized by the World Food monitor the Fund’s
activities in the SAP accounting systemProgramme (WFP), given their extensive progress in improving
to ensure better financial reporting andinancial reporting, as a basis to improve the its accounting structure
the security of the Fund's data related tooding structure at the Court. Moreover, it|is to enhance transparencgy
victims. also planned to review how the security |of and accountability.

victims' data is being treated by the Court.| If
deemed necessary the Fund will extend|its
review to include other entities dealing with

victims.

2 We further recommend that the Fundrhe fund has included provision for a new December 2008 We will continue to
review the administrative supportpost as part of its 2009 proposed budget to monitor and report if
requirement to discharge its functionsensure an appropriate level of support|is appropriate.
and ensure that an appropriate level| adivailable as the Funds' activity expands.
support is available.

3 We also recommend that the Fupdsiven the Funds' recent commencement with  Ongoing We will follow up on
consider the issues presented by workingroject activity the Fund plans to monitor its the Fund’s payment and
with several different currencies to makeactivity over the next two years to enable the currency management
payments to victims; and the way |jnFund to take a decision which is based [on procedures over the
which exposure to exchange rgteactual experience. next two years.
fluctuations will be managed.
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Annex B

Scope and Audit Approach

Audit Scope and objectives

Our audit examined the financial statements ofTthest Fund for Victims for the financial
period ended 31 December 2007 in accordance wdtlrihancial Regulations. The main purpose
of the audit was to enable us to form an opinionvbiether the financial statements fairly presented
the Fund's financial position, its surplus, fundsdacash flows for the year ended 31 December
2007; and whether they had been properly preparaddordance with the Financial Regulations.

Audit Standards

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Intéwnat Standards on Auditing as issued
by the International Auditing and Assurance Stadsl&oard. These standards required us to plan
and carry out the audit so as to obtain reasoregsarance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement. Management were rediplen®r preparing these financial statements
and the External Auditor is responsible for expressan opinion on them, based on evidence
obtained during the audit.

Audit Approach

Our audit included a general review of the acciognsystems and such tests of the
accounting records and internal control procedasase considered necessary in the circumstances.
The audit procedures are designed primarily forghgose of forming an opinion on the Fund’s
financial statements. Consequently our work didl ingolve detailed review of all aspects of
financial and budgetary systems from a managemersppctive, and the results should not be
regarded as a comprehensive statement of all wes&saehat exist or all improvements that might
be made

Our audit also included focused work in whichrafiterial areas of the financial statements
were subject to direct substantive testing. Alfeamination was carried out to ensure that the
financial statements accurately reflected the Fainatcounting records; that the transactions
conformed to the relevant financial regulations goderning body directives; and that the audited
accounts were fairly presented.
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Statement |
Trust Fund for Victims
Statement of income and expenditure and changesfand balances
for the period ending 31 December 2007
(in euros)
Notes

2007 Ref. 2006
Income
Voluntary contributions 578,584 34 1,135,667
Interest income 103,599 37,201
Other/miscellaneous income - -
Total income 682,183 1,172,868
Expenditure
Expenditures 43,061 3.5 1,821
Unliguidated obligations 38,119 3.5 4,000
Total expenditure 81,180 5,821
Excess/(shortfall) of income over expenditure 601,80 1,167,047
Fund balances at beginning of financial period 2,450,708 1,283,661
Fund balances as at 31 December 2007 3,051,711 2,450,708

Signed (Marian Kashou’)
Chief Finance Officer
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Statement Il
Trust Fund for Victims
Statement of assets, liabilities, reserves and furmhlances
as at 31 December 2007
(in euros)
2007 e 2006
Assets
Cash and term deposits 3,037,161 2,444,592
Other accounts receivable 56,669 3.6 13,115
Total assets 3,093,830 2,457,707
Liabilities
Unliquidated obligations 38,119 4,000
Interfund balances payable 4,000 3.7 2,999
Total liabilities 42,119 6,999
Reserves and fund balances
Cumulative surplus 3,051,711 2,450,708
Total reserves and fund balances 3,051,711 2,450,708
Total liabilities, reserves and fund balances 3,09830 2,457,707

Signed (Marian Kashou’)
Chief Finance Officer ...
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Statement 1l
Trust Fund for Victims
Statement of cash flow as at 31 December 2007
(in euros)
2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net excess/(shortfall) of income over expendit@&{ement I)
Other accounts receivable (increase)/decrease
Unliguidated obligations increase/(decrease)

Interfund balances payable increase/(decrease)

Less: interest income

601,003 1,167,047

(43,554) (7,717)
34,119 1,000
11,00 (1)

(103,599) (37,201)

Net cash from operating activities

488,970 1,123,128

Cash flows from investing and financing activities

Plus: interest income

103,599 37,201

Net cash from investing and financing activities

18,599 37,201

Cash flows from other sources

Net increase/(decrease)

Net cash from other sources

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and term deposits

Cash and term deposits at beginning of period

92,560 1,160,329

25024, 1,284,263

Cash and term deposits at 31 December 2007 (Statemhd)

3,037,161 2,444,592
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Notes to the financial statements of the Trust Fundbr Victims

1. The Trust Fund for Victims and its objectives

1.1 The Trust Fund for Victims was establishedh®y Assembly of States Parties (ASP), in its
resolution ICC-ASP/1/Res.6, for the benefit of wig of crimes within the jurisdiction of the
International Criminal Court (ICC), and the famdlief such victims.

In the annex to that resolution, the Assembly ait&dt Parties established a Board of
Directors, which is responsible for the managemnoétite Trust Fund.

1. Summary of significant accounting and financial r@orting policies

2.1 The accounts of the Trust Fund for Victims megntained in accordance with the Financial
Regulations and Rules of the ICC, as establisheithdyAssembly of States Parties in the annex to
resolution ICC-ASP/1/Res.6. Therefore, the accoohthe Trust Fund are currently in conformity
with the United Nations system accounting standafidwese notes form an integral part of the Trust
Fund’s financial statements.

2.2 Fund accounting the Trust Fund’s accounts are maintained on d &atounting basis.

2.3 Financial period: the financial period of the Trust Fund is oneeadlar year, unless
otherwise decided by the Assembly of States Parties

2.4 Historical cost basis the accounts are prepared on the historical lwasis of accounting
and are not adjusted to reflect the effects of ghmanprices for goods and services.

2.5 Currency of accounts the accounts of the Trust Fund are presentedrimse Accounting
records kept in other currencies are converted entos at the United Nations operational rate of
exchange in effect at the date of the financiatestent. Transactions in other currencies are
converted into euros at the United Nations openatioate of exchange in effect at the date of
transaction.

2.6 Funding: the Trust Fund for Victims is funded by:
a) Voluntary contributions from governments, internatil organisations, individuals,
corporations and other entities, in accordance wathvant criteria adopted by the

Assembly of States Parties;

b) Money and other property collected through finefodieiture transferred to the Trust
Fund if ordered by the ICC pursuant to article @&agraph 2, of the Statute;

c) Resources collected through awards for reparatibosgered by the ICC pursuant to
rule 98 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence;

d) Resources as the Assembly of States Parties mégedecallocate.
2.7 Income: voluntary contributions are recorded as income be basis of a written
commitment to pay monetary contributions during tharent financial year, except where
contributions are not preceded by a pledge. Fesetiunds, income is recorded at the time that the
actual contributions are received from the donors.

2.8 Cash and term depositscomprise funds held in interest-bearing bank aetgutime
deposits, and call accounts.
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2. The Trust Fund for Victims (statements I-llI)

3.1 Statement | reports the income and expenditure and changesserve and fund balances
during the financial period. It includes the c#dtion of the excess of income over expenditure for
the current period and prior-period adjustment®odme or expenditure.

3.2 Statement |l shows the assets, liabilities, reserves and fualdnibes as at 31 December
2007.

3.3 Statement Il is the cash flow summary statement prepared ukiegndirect method of
International Accounting Standard 7.

3.4 Voluntary contributions in the total amount of €578,584 were received fgmwernments,
individuals, organisations and other entities.

3.5 Expenditures: the total amount of expenditures of €81,180 cosawi disbursed
expenditures of €43,061 and outstanding obligatairé38,119.

3.6 Other accounts receivablen the amount of €56,669 represent interest eabugadhot yet
received as at 31 December.

3.7 Interfund balances payablerepresents a payable to the ICC General Fund.

3.8 Contributions from the ICC: in annex 6 of resolution ICC-ASP/1/Res.6, theehsily of
States Parties decided that the Registrar of thertGhould be responsible for providing such
assistance as is necessary for the proper funetjafi the Board of Directors of the Trust Fund in
carrying out its tasks, and should participatehim ieetings of the Board in an advisory capacity.
In 2007, the ASP approved an appropriation of €¥@®for the Secretariat of the Trust Fund for
Victims which administers the Trust Fund and offatsninistrative support to the Board and its
meetings. Expenditures recorded in the ICC’s aotofor the Secretariat during the financial
period are €696,279.



